REGULAR MEETING
OF
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105

Monday, December 19, 2011
2:00 P.M.
AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT (Public may address the Board on any subject matter not
on the agenda and within the Board’s jurisdiction. See “Notice to the Public”

below.) Please make your comments from the podium once acknowledged by the
President of the Board.

CONSENT AGENDA

Action: Recommend Approval of Consent Agenda by vote on one motion
unless member requests separate consideration

a. Minutes November 21, 2011 Regular Board Meeting

b.  Investment of Funds

e Tinancial Reports

e Investment Reports
c.  Payment of Claims

MODIFIED SCC UPPER REACH RELIABILITY PROJECT
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD
Action: Recommend Approval by Motion and Roll Call Vote of the Board

CHANGE IN JOB DESCRIPTION FOR COMB’S ENGINEER
Action: Recommend Approval by Motion and Vote of the Board

JOINT DEFENSE AND COOPERATION AGREEMENT - UPDATE
AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL
Action: Recommend Approval by Motion and Roll Call Vote of the Board

REPORT FROM GENERAL COUNSEL
a.  Status Report:

1. Fisheries Implementation Agreement
2. Quiota Creek MOU’s with County of Santa Barbara

REPORT FROM BOARD COMMITTEES



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

a.  Board Administration Committee Meeting, December 9, 2011

OPERATIONS DIVISION ACTIVITIES
a.  Operations Report

FISHERIES DIVISION ACTIVITIES
a.  Lower Santa Ynez River Fisheries Report

REPORTS FROM THE MANAGER

Cachuma Reservoir Current Conditions

Lake Cachuma Quagga Survey

Verbal - California Conservation Corp

Verbal - Report on San Luis Obispo County’s action on Quagga Mussels
Mid Pacific Region Water Users Conference, January 25-27, 2012
Verbal - Work Plan for COMB

g. 2012 Board Meeting Schedule

Mmoo TP

[CLOSED SESSION]: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-
ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

a. INITIATION OF LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT
CODE SECTION 54956.9(c). Two cases

b. SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9 (b): Two cases

c. THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES.
[GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957(a)] CONSULTATION
WITH: AGENCY COUNSEL, SECURITY OPERATIONS
MANAGER

REPORT FROM THE AUDITOR FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011
Action: Recommend Acceptance by Motion and Vote of the Board

DIRECTORS’ REQUEST FOR AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT
MEETING

MEETING SCHEDULE

e January 23, 2012 at 2:00 P.M., COMB Office

e Board Packages Available on COMB Website
www.cachuma-board.org

COMB ADJOURNMENT



NOTICE TO PUBLIC

Public Comment: Any member of the public may address the Board on any subject within the jurisdiction of the Board that
is not scheduled for a public hearing before the Board. The total time for this item will be limited by the President of the
Board. If you wish to address the Board under this item, please complete and deliver to the Secretary of the Board before the
meeting is convened, 2 “Request to Speak” forms including a description of the subject you wish to address.
Americans with Disabilities Act: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting, please contact the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board office at (805) 687-4011 at least 48
houss prior to the meeting to enable the Board to make reasonable arrangements,

[This Agenda was Posted at 3301 Lausel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, CA
at Santa Barbara City Hall, Santa Barbara, CA and at Member District Offices and Noticed and Delivered in Accordance with
Section 54954.1 and .2 of the Government Code.}



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING

Of the

CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

Held at the

Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board Office
3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, CA
Monday, November 21, 2011

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

The meeting was called to order at 2:01 p.m. by President Lauren Hanson who
chaired the meeting. Those in attendance were:

Directors present:
Lauren Hanson
Bob Lieberknecht
Doug Morgan
Harlan Burchardi
Dale Francisco

Others present:
Bruce Mowry
John MclInnes
Rebecca Bjork
Tim Robinson
Sonia Fernandez
Sandy Mowry

2. Public Comment

Goleta Water District

Carpinteria Valley Water District
Montecito Water District

SYR Water Conservation District, ID No. 1
City of Santa Barbara

Tony Trembley
Charles Hamilton
Ruth Snodgrass
Kate Rees

Phil Walker

Luke Mowry

General Manager Bruce Mowry introduced his wife, Sandy Mowry and his son,

Luke Mowry.

Phil Walker commented on seismic activity in the area in relation to Bradbury Dam,

Intake Tower and SCC.

4. Verbal update From General Counsel
a. Joint Defense and Cooperation Agreement
Tony Trembley, General Counsel reported that he had sent the draft
agreement with his mark ups on November 15" to Gary Kvistad, ID No. 1
Counsel and Kevin O’Brien, CCRB Counsel. He is waiting for their

comments.

b. Quiota Creek MOU’s with the County of Santa Barbara
Tony Trembley reported that he had sent the draft MOU for Crossing #6 to
Chris Dahlstrom, ID No. 1 General Manager and their General Counsel Gary
Kvistad on November 8" and is waiting for their response.

TEM# _Sa




Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting

November 21, 2011

9. [Closed Session]: Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation

a.

Initiation of Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (c).
Two Cases

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(b). Two Cases

Tony Trembley, General Counsel announced that there are two items under 9a
as stated in the agenda and also two items under 9b, the first one is AECOM
Task Order 37 Modified South Coast Conduit Upper Reach and the second
one is the liability claim of Melinda Fournier and Zach Fournier [claim
available for public inspection per GC 54957.5].

The Board went into closed session at 2:10 p.m. and came out of closed
session at 2:58 p.m.

Tony Trembley, General Counsel reported out of closed session on one matter
under Item 9a. This report is pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.1(a)2: By a vote of 6/0/1, Director Burchardi abstaining, the
Governing Board has approved initiation of an action. Once the action has
formally commenced, the action, defendants and other information shall be
disclosed upon inquiry, unless: (a) to do so would jeopardize COMB’s
service of process on an unserved party; or (b) to do so would jeopardize
COMB’s ability to conclude existing settlement negotiations to its advantage.

President Hanson recessed the COMB meeting at 3:00 p.m.
COMB resumed the meeting at 3:41 p.m.
Director Francisco left the meeting at 3:42 p.m.

3. Consent Agenda

a.

b.

Minutes:

October 24, 2011 Regular Board Meeting
Investment Funds

Financial Report

Investment Report

Payment of Claims

Director Morgan moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented, seconded by
Director Lieberknecht passed 5/0/2, Director Francisco was absent.

5. Operations Division Activities

a.

Operations Report

The monthly report was included in the board packet. Director Morgan
requested an update on the Modified Upper Reach Reliability Project, Lauro
Debris Basin clean out and Verizon in regards to SCADA.

6. Fisheries Division Activities

a.

Lower Santa Ynez River Fisheries Report i

¥ e pe;

FRREED




Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting

November 21, 2011

The monthly report was included in the board packet. Director Morgan
requested some clarification on the 2011 fall snorkel survey for next months
report.

7. Reports From the Manager

a.

Cachuma Water Reports
The monthly water reports were included in the board packet.

Cachuma Reservoir Current Conditions
The daily operations report for Lake Cachuma through November 16, 2011
was included in the board packet.

Lake Cachuma Quagga Survey

The Cachuma Lake Quagga Survey for October was included in the board
packet. Director Morgan reported that the Flood Control of San Luis Obispo
County intends to send a letter to Governor Brown asking that a state of
emergency be declared for preventing Quagga mussel invasion, he requested
that Bruce Mowry, General Manager follow up with this and discuss it with
Santa Barbara County.

8. Directors’ Request for Agenda Items for Next Meeting

A report on the action that San Luis Obispo has taken, regarding the Quagga mussel
letter to the Governor.

10. Meeting Schedule

The next regular Board meeting will be held December 19, 2011 at 2:00 P.M.
The Agendas and Board Packets are available on the COMB website,
www.cachuma-board.org

11. COMB Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:06 p.m.

APPROVED: Approved

Respectfully submitted,

Bruce Mowry, Secretary of the Board

Unapproved L

Lauren Hanson, President of the Board

=3
i
pU
223

T
ﬁ‘;@
£
m

SRIGN




12/13/2011 COMB

Accrual Basis
Statement of Net Assets
As of November 30, 2011

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
TRUST FUNDS
1210 - WARREN ACT TRUST FUND 128,090.46
1220 - RENEWAL FUND 131,946.25

Total TRUST FUNDS

1050 - GENERAL FUND
1100 - REVOLVING FUND

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1010 - PETTY CASH
1200 - LAIF
1303 - Bradbury SOD Act Assmnts Rec
1304 - Lauro Dam SOD Assesmnt Rec
1305 - ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE
1400 - PREPAID INSURANCE
1401 - W/C INSURANCE DEPOSIT

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

1500 - VEHICLES

1505 - OFFICE FURN & EQUIPMENT

1510 - MOBILE OFFICES

1515 - FIELD EQUIPMENT

1525 - PAVING

1550 - ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1810 - LT Bradbury SOD Act Assess Rec
19820 - LT Lauro SOD Act Assess Rec
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

260,036.71

872,498.58
7,294.08

1,139,820.37

400.00
3,861.29
66,328.00
12,089.00
65.00
12,860.72
6,529.00

102,133.01

1,241,962.38

412,962.06
346,249.32
97,803.34
447,612.64
22,350.00
-1,092,434.64

234,542.72

5,557,253.07
992,518.00

6,549,771.07

8,026,276.17

7h

PageTofz

[




12/13/2011 COMB

Accrual Basis
Statement of Net Assets
As of November 30, 2011

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2200 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 150,028.01
Total Accounts Payable 150,028.01

Other Current Liabilities

Payroll-DepPrm Admin 64.62
Payroll-DepPrm FD 4.62
Payroll-DepPrm Ops 43.86
2550 - VACATION/SICK 51,242.30
2561 - BRADBURY DAM SOD ACT 66,328.61
2562 - SWRCB - WATER RIGHTS FEE -13,046.10
2563 - LAURO DAM SOD ACT 12,089.00
2565 - ACCRUED INTEREST SOD ACT 87,008.00
2590 - DEFERRED REVENUE 260,036.71
Total Other Current Liabilities 463,771.62
Total Current Liabilities 613,799.63

Long Term Liabilities

2602 - LT SOD Act Liability-Bradbury 5,557,253.07

2603 - LT SOD Act Liability - Lauro 992,518.00

2604 - OPEB LT Liability 189,568.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 6,739,339.07

Total Liabilities 7,353,138.70
NET ASSETS

3901 - Retained Net Assets 140,805.42

Net Income 532,332.05

Total Net Assets 673,137.47

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 8,026,276.17




1 afeyq

%0700} 000 0,621 04621 000
%0001 000 0621 045zl 000
%0°001 000 86'612 86612 000
%0001 000 0.°621 0L62L 000
%0°001 000 82'v6 82'v6 000
%0001 000 Z6'50'L 26'50'1 000
%0001 000 C5'669 C5'66G 000
%0°001 000 L0'gse 10'2sc 000
%0°004 000 6€702 6€402 000
%000} 000 y7'966'L ¥r'966'L 000
%0700} 000 ¥8'996'L $8°995'} 000
%0°00} 000 752021 z5'202') 000
%0°001 000 90°€98'85 90°£98'8§ 000
%0°001 000 vS'€98 $5'€08 000
%0001 000 9€°209'L 9€'/09'L 000
%0001 000 8'€60'y 87'€60'y 000
%000} 000 G56V1'9 g5'6v1'9 000
%8 101" 00'S¥2'se- 96'88£'9¢ %8101~ 00°6¥L's8- 96'98€9¢ 000
%0°004 000 96'88€'0¢ 96°885'0¢ 000
%00 00°SY.2'6e- 000 %00 00'svL'se" 000 000
%00 000 000 S00 S0°0-
%0°001 000 500 000 500
%0°001 000 S0°0 S0°0 000
%9'eY 00'816'L2¥'S S'868'cL€'T %0°0S 00'8v8'G/Y'S Z9°/v8'18L°) %128 00°020'0v6'L £8°050'9€9
%8 e 00'8L6'L2Y'S Gr'968'€/€'Z %0°0§ 00'8¥8'GLp'S Z9°/¥8'8' %1428 00°0/0'06'L £8'050'9€9
%8S 00'81L6'1ZY'S S'868'c/£'C %0°0G 00'8v8'G/v'e A Whe: DAI %LTE 00°0.0'0v6'L £8'050'9€9
%00 00°000'06 000 000 %00 00°000°06 000
%0001 000 £TLIY'29 €2'11¥'29 000
%0°L 00'1L05'6e. 996G 000 %02 00°105'68L 99°GLY' LS
%00 00°000'002'} 000 %00 00°00000Z°L 000 000
%0°001 000 09'608'Z 09'608'Z 000
%0700} 000 62'652 62'652 000
%00 00012161 000 000 %0°0 00012161 000
%00 00'788'9/ 000 000 %0°0 00'788'9. 000
%1ZL 00°€ze'82L's 19°9¥6'952'2 %G 00'8¥8'6/2'2 0G°LLE'2L9') %989 00'/¥'258 L1°6E9'v8S
3ebpng jo %, jebpng LLAON-OL Int  jobpngjo 9, jebpng LLAON-OL It 39Bpng jo 9, jebpng L1 AON - O}, INP
V.LOL suopessdo soLIoYsId

L1L0Z AON-Anp - sjenjoy "sA 10Bpng
mm..:..—_—ucmaxm pue SanuUsAsy| JO jususlels
pieog asueusjuley @ uoiesadp ewnyosen

TJEANNNL 3L07T023L dN - €-20L¢ [ejoL

uonsadsuj - yg-201¢
T3NNNL 3L01003L dN - £-201€

NOILLV.LS TOULNOD dN - 2-20L€ [€j0L

uopoadsul - Yz-20L¢
aoueuLUIRYy - BZ-L0LE
NOILVLS TOYLINOD dN - 2-20L¢

HYIMOL IMVLINIdN - L-20L€ [ejoL

suofesado - §1-L01E
Buiuesd - qi-L01¢
dOUBUSJUICIA - BL-L0LE
HIMOL INVLNI dN - 1-20LE

IV.LHOd HLYON - L04€

Heg Juspoy - 9oL¢

vavos - sole

20)y dinb3 @ yaA - v0LE

sd0 998 - €01¢

Bugpeay Jae - Z0LE

SARDT UONRIBA - A-LOLE

9AE3TIIS - §-101€

3Aea AepIIOH - H-LOLE

1esuibug - 3-101¢€ 1BI0L

1yiQ - 1eauibugz - I-L0LE
Joge Iy Z 00 - LI-LoLE
soaulbuzg - 3-101¢
SNOILYYIJO - H0av1 - 00iE

TI0¥AVd [€j0L

ad-ssouo
SS0J9
TIO¥AVd
asuadxgy

1304 SS0I9
awoouj jejo L

ANNIAIY 000€ 18301

pung jusunid)jag jo8foid ewnyose) - gLog
awooay| ueis gg doid - £20¢

awoou| Juels Z# Buissosn 90 - ZzZog
awoou| Juels) .- LzZo¢

awoou| ISI - 020¢

oo }saIdju] - 0LOE

pung [emauay - L00¢

10y uaLlepq - 900

(syuswissassy A30) 386png RO - 1L00E

SNNIAIY 000€
awodyj

siseq [eniooy
127547141

d L¥:L



7 obed

%0001 000 £9'gse'L £9'€5Z'L 000 HIOAYISIY - £-0L1€ [Bj0L
%0°001 000 9¢'201 9e°201 000 uopoadsuj - Yg-0LLE
%0001 000 0521 0.'6ZL 000 suopesadQ - J¢-0L1€
%0001 00°0 8216 8216 000 Buideospuen - ag-g} 1€
%000} 000 62°926 62°926 000 juawoabeuep pasp - PS-0LLE

HIOAY3STY - £-0L1E

%0700} 000 8Z'v6 8T¥6 000 NOILYLS TOYLNOD - Z-011€ [8I0L

%0°004 000 8C¥6 8276 000 aoueusjulel - Z-0L L
NOILVLS T0MLNOD - Z-0L1€

%0001 000 60'69Z'61 60'69Z'61 000 QYVA - L-0LLS IejoL
%0°001 000 £5°80Y £5'80Y 000 uopeyngeyay - [L-011¢
%000} 000 0L°62k 06T} 000 uopoadsul - Yy-0pL¢
%0001 000 66'969'1 $6'969'1 000 peoy - 61-0L1e
%0°00} 000 00819 00819 000 Buideospue - a}-gL1¢
%0004 000 zslo8 Z5'19¢ 000 juswaBeuel pasp - PL-0LLE
%0001 000 048802 0,802 000 Bujueajo - q1-011€
%0001 000 69°G10'v1 69°610'pL 000 aouBUBUIRI - BL-0L)E

QUVA - L-0L1E
ouNY1- 0biE
%000} 000 82'¥6 82'V6 000 MV 13d YNOMOD - 601L€ jeloL

%0700} 000 8Z'¥6 826 000 LNONYNL - 1-601€ [BjOL

%000} 000 8276 8Z'76 000 uopoadsui - yL-601€

LNONANL - 1-60LE
YYIN 130 YNOUOD - 60LE

%0°001 000 91°900'LL 91'900'LL 000 NNV Na19 - 801¢€ jejol

%0001 000 1Z2°8L€' 12°8L€' 000 LNONYNL VO - ¥-801¢€ [ej0L
%0700} 000 €c8ll €28ll 000 peoy - By-g01¢€
%0001 000 y0'092'y 70092’y 000 juswabeuew Pasp - Pr-80L¢

1NONANL VO - -80LE

%0'00} 000 £6°0C €5°0¢ 000 NOLLVLS diNd V9 - £-801¢ [ej0L
%0001 000 €5°0C €502 000 ddueuUIRY - eC-80LE

NOILVLS dNd VO - £-80L¢

%0°00L 000 16'¢88°} 16°€88'L 000 HIOAYASTY V9 - Z-80L€ 18I0
%0'00} 000 16°€88'L 16'c88’L 000 Juswabeuey pasm - PZ-80LE

HIOAYISIY VO - 2-80LE

%0004 000 Syees'y SyeTL'y 000 TVLHOd HINOS VO - 1-801¢ [e30L
%0°00L 000 3h44 [Sn44 000 uofyoadsuj - Y1-301¢
%0°00} 000 06°€2e 06'¢€ce 000 peoy - 6-301.¢
%0°001 000 98°eelL'y 98'eel'y 000 juswaBeuely pasp - PL-801€
%0°001 000 8llce 8L'1ce 000 sdueuajUlely - eL-80LE

IYLYOd HINOS VO - 1-80L¢
INNY NJT9 - 80L€

%000} 000 09'10¥'L 09'10%'L 000 TYLHOd HLYON - 20L€ [ej0]
jobpng jo %, 1abpng LLAON- QL. INF  }9Bpngjo 9, 1ebpng LLAON-OL Nt jobpngyo o, jobpng L} AON - O}, Inf
Iv.LOL suonesedo sopaysId
110Z AON-AInp - sjenjoy "sA }ebpng siseq [en1ody
ww._su_—u:mo_xm pue ssnusAsy| JO jusuisie]ls WHEbZL

pieog asueusjuiepy g uoneiadQ ewnyosen Nd 2viL



¢ abey

%000} 000 €151 £L St 000 vopengeyey - li-glie )|
%000} 000 £7'669 £7'669 000 Bupsoulbuz - 11-g14¢
%000} 000 £rLe evie 000 uonoadsu - yL-GLLE
%0001 000 85'99. 8599/ 000 aduBUBIUIEY - BL-5LLE
NOILVLS TOMINOD - b§hiE
VINILNIdUYD - SLIE ro
%000} 000 or'90e 0908 000 YALIW ANVANNOS - vLLE [ejoL
%000} 000 ov'90¢ ov'90¢ 000 LINVA - L-vLLE fejol
%000} 000 86612 86612 000 uoneyngeysy - f1-pLie
%000} 00'0 Zvo8 zZros 000 S0URUBIUEN - BL-PLLE
LINVA - bpLLE
HILIW ANYANNOSE - ¥h1E
%0001 00'0 16°9.8') 16'9/8') 000 VOILYUO - £41€ (2101
%000} 000 ece6h'l ccoey’L 000 HIOANTSTY - Z-€L1€ I830L
%0001 000 189l 18°9LL 000 uonoadsuj - yz-giLg
%000} 000 90'SLy 90'LY 000 suonesado - Jz-¢1ie
%0°00} 000 G6p8e S6'8E 000 Juswabeuel poom - PZ-cLie
%000} 000 15128 15128 000 aaueUBUIRY - BZ-CLLE
HIOANISTY - Z-€LLE
%000} 000 85'8.¢ 89°'8.€ 000 NOILVLS TONLNOD - b-€LLE [eJ0L
%000} 000 8276 8276 000 uoneylIgeyay - f1-€LLe
%000} 000 erle EvLE 000 uopdadsuj - yp-ghLe
%000} 000 18252 18252 000 souBULIUIEI - BL-ELLE
NOILVLS TOMINOD - L-€11E
VOILNO - €41€
%0°001 000 evle evie 000 aT3I443HS - TLLE [EjOL
%0004 000 evle erie 000 NOLLVLS TOMINOD - 1-ZLLE [EJoL
%000} 000 erle erie 000 uopoadsu| - yj-Z4Le
NOILVLS TOMINOD - b-ZLiE
QT31443HS - ZHiE
%0001 00'0 €162 eL1ee 00'0 301440 - LL1E 801
%000} 000 eLlez €l lee 000 301440 MIND - 1-LL1E 801
%000} 000 €lsz €182 00'0 uoneNgeySY - f1-111g
301440 MIND - L-b1LE
301440 - LbIE
%0°001 00'0 1225922 1225922 000 O¥NYT- 0LLE Ej0L
%000} 000 126802 6807 000 , SNISVE SINE30a - 1-0L1€ [ejoL
%000} 000 £0'lee £o'lee 000 BueoulBu - 1H-041¢
%000} 000 vIlLz YL LLZ 00'0 uopoadsu] - yp-041€
%0001 000 £5'80% €580 000 suopesado - Jr-0LLe
%000} 000 $6'6EY G6'6EY 000 Butuea|s - ar-0LLE
%0°00} 000 20'Zb9 20'Zv9 000 aduBuBIUEl - BY-0LLE
SNISYE SINE3A - 7-0LLE
196pnd 4o 9, 19Bpng LL AON - OL. I 196png LLAON- QL INT  39bpng o % 1eBpng LL AON - Ok, Inf
VLol suogesado seuaUsly
LL0Z AON-Anp - sjen3oy "sA 10Bpng siseq [ensooy
sainjipuadxs pue SanuUaAY JO JUBWBE)S bz

pieog esueusjulely 1 uonesadp ewnyoses Wd 2v:1



p abed

%60V 00°000°02 10'721'8 %6°0% 00°000°02 10721'8 000
%TEh 00°000'Z} 00'18S'L %z Eh 00°000'21 00°18S't 000
%E'GE 00°000'SY 0.°0/8'G1 %8 'GE 00°000'G¥ 0.°048'GL 000
%665 00°000'S 06'266'C %665 00°000°'s 06'266'2 000
%6°SE 00°000'G 8c'¥69'L %6'EE 00°000'S 8E169'L 000
%06l 00°000°0} 8%°00S'L %0°GL 00°000'0} 84°00S'| 000
%1'88 00°000'5Z ¥6'289'6 %48 00°000'52 ¥6'289'6 000
%8°'9€ 00'2.9'0¢8 ¥8'6.1'80€ %8°9¢ 00'2,9'9¢8 ¥8'6.1'80€ 000
%0°0 00°LL¥'2L8 000 %0°0 00°L1¥'2/8 000 000
%0°00L 000 0.'656'C 06562 000
%0°001} 000 9L'21E'T) 91°11£'T 000
%0°00} 000 zgeal'ze Z8'z9L'2¢ 000
%0001 000 ¥Z'ZI6'e8 ¥Z'ZI6'e8 000
%0°001 000 816626 81'66Z'6 000
%0°00L 000 86'62L 86'6C.L 000
%0004 000 86'6CL 86'6CL 000
%0°001 000 £2'7ES €T ¥ES 000
%0°00} 000 £TVES £ZT¥ES 000
%0°001 000 167808 16'7E0'8 000
%0°001 000 89700y 89'700'y 000
%0001 000 29'LE9 c9LES 000
%000} 000 19Z6Y'S 19Z67'E 000
%0°001 000 687828 68'78.'8 000
%0700} 000 68'%8.'8 687828 000
%0004 000 8C'v6 8C'V6 000
%0001 000 £17/5) e1'/51 000
%0°001 000 05'6v2 05'6¥Z 000
%000} 000 86'¢82'8 86'¢92'8 000
%0001 000 zLsve' TLSYE'T 000
%0°001 000 G169 G169 000
%0700} 000 78282 78282 000
%0°00} 000 LO6YL Lo'6YL 000
%0°00} 000 21852 zL85¢ 000
%0°00} 000 1669} 1S¥59'L 000
jebpng jo %, jebpng 1L AON-OL N 19Bpng o v, 1ebpng LLAON-OL N jeBpngjo % Jobpng L1 AON - 0L, INP
TvioL suonesado saLaysly

Lioe >OZ|>_3—; - S[eN}oY "SA uwa_uzm
salnjipuadxy pue SaNUdAaY JO JusWde)S
pleog asueusjulepy ¥ uoijesad ewinysen

speoy g sBulpiing - zogg
ISI '8 SAIEA “J9JBIN YNPUOD - LOEE
HOgV1 LOVMINOD - 00€E

ANZINdINDA ® H3A 00Z€ ejoL

SNOJUR|IDISII - 02

teyuay yuawdinby - £0z¢

jeydes paxid - Z0Zg

a0yl dinb3/e[IusA - 1028 5.

ANIWCINDA *® HIA 00ZE-

SNOILYHIHO - HOdVT - 004€ [B30L

18I0 - SNOILLYHIHO - HOav1 - 00L¢
asealpap 09 sdo - 691€
V¥OId 00 sdQ - 09)€

Syid - 991¢
dwoy SINUOM B UHESH - 051E

HOVZY VIMILNIJYVO - L1 1€ [ejoL

-

LINANOD  ¥-LL1¢€ [BjoL

Buues|y - ap-LL1¢
LINANOD - t-LLLE

SAANTVA - €-LLI€ B0l

uone|iqeysy - fg-211¢
SAANTVA - L8
SHAUNLONYLS - b-LL1E [8j0L
uonejiqeysy - fL-LL1¢
uopoadsu] - yi-LLLE
aouruduIRK - BL-LLLE
STUNLINYLS - b-2LLE
HOVIY VINILINIJYYO - ZL1E

HOVIY V13709 - 9L1€ 18jol

STFAUNLONUYLS - 1-9LL€ [BJol

uognejiiiqeysy - fy-gLLe
uonoadsul - yp-9L1¢
Juswabeur|y pasapp - PL-9LLE
aoueudUIBI - BL-9LLE
SHUNLONYLS - L-9L1E
HOVZY V13109 - 9Lig

VI¥3ILNIdYVYD - GLig [ejo)

AFOAYISIY - 2-GL1E lejol

uopoadsuj - Uz-GLi€

Juawebeuey paap - PZ-SLLE

ajueusjuie| - eZ-GLLE
HIOANASAY - 2-G11E

NOILV.LS TOYLNOD - L-GL L€ [BjoL

siseq [enJooy
LueLeL

Nd ¥}



[lmw W
g abed ?V w N
i
SAIMIHSH - OV LOVHINOD - 022y |
%02} 00°005'sY 28'08Y's 000 %0°Z) 00°005'SY 28°08%'G SIUIHSH - dINDA 8 STTDIHIA - 00Z¥ 10301
%E' LT 00°005'Z 6£°2ES 000 %EVT 00°005'2 6£°28S SNOdURIBISIAl - 0621
%T'S 00°000'0€ 217996 000 %e'e 00°000'0€ 217996 jended pexid - 08zy
%90 00°000'c) L127186'C 000 %9'08 00'000'€} 12'186'C 903Nl dinb3/a)v1yen - 022V
SIIYIHSIA - dINDA ? STIOIHIANA - 0027
%4 0¥ 00291288 90°292'251 000 %1 0% 00291288 90°/9/'481 SIS - 0TV - 00 [ejoL
%E €8 00°00L'Z 10872 000 %E'e8 000012 10°8v1°L 21e0IPO 0D Q4 - E51IY
%8 v 00°004'9} SY' LY. 000 %8 i 00°002'91 S LLY'L Vol4 00 Gd - Z§IY
%yer 00°962 ¥¥ y9'61Z'61 000 %y Sh 00°962 ¥ v9'6L2'6) S¥dAd Gd - 15Lp
%L LY 00°51£92 60'956'SE 000 %L Ly 00°61€'9,2 60°966'SE OM 8 YNeeH ad - 0SLY
%0 6% 00°000°2 £9°9ZP'e 000 %061 00°000'Z £9'0Zv'e M - 9pIY [euoSess - ¢LLY
%EG 00°000'G} 5266/ 000 %G 00°000'S1L S2'66. HS - 8pIV [euosess - ZLLY
%0°0 00°000'8 000 000 %00 00°000'8 000 gV - 9ply |euoseas - L1y
%00 00°000°0L 000 000 %0'0 00°000'01 000 “id - aply jeuosess - 0Ly
%9'S 00°/59'/5 1¥7'862'92 000 %9'G¥ 00°269'28 1%'862'92 jsiBojoig - ¢0Ly fej0L
%688 00°289'29 LY'862'92 000 %6°8€ 00°£59'29 1¥'862'92 1y - 3s1bojoig - oLy
%0°0 00°000'0}- 000 000 %00 00°000°04- 000 Bupiojjuol 018 Z 2O - 1-€0LY
siBojoig - 0LY
%0ZY 00'695'92 Z5'16l'ee 000 %02y 00°695'9/ Z5'16L'2e 1sibojoig 309foid - ZOLY |e30L
%Z LS 00'695'98 zs'16L'2e 000 % LS 00°695'98 Z5°161°2¢ 19y30 - 3s1bojoig y08foid - ZoLy
%00 00°000°01~ 000 000 %00 00°000'01~ 000 Bupoyuo o1g z 90 - 1-Z0LY
3s1Bojolg yosfoid - Zoi¥
%l Ly 00'625'c2 vZ'6v9'08 000 %L 'Ly 00'625°2 ¥Z'6v9'0¢ ISHUBIOG 90IN0SAY 101USS - LOLY [eJ0L
%G €S 00'625°16 ¥2'6Y9°08 000 %G"€€ 00'625'L6 vZ'6¥9'0¢8 18Y30 - JSIUBIOG 9N0SBY JOIUBS - LOLY
%00 00°000°¢- 000 000 %00 00°000'¢- 000 uwipy/BunIpm Jued g 00 - 2-10LY
%0°0 00°000'G1- 000 000 %00 00°000'G4- 000 uonensuIWpPY 398foid T OO - L-L0LY
JS13UB10G 90IN0SAY 01U9g - LOLY
SIIYIHSIA - H0av1- 0011
%0°00L 000 100 100 000 sajouedalosiq UOILIIOU0IBY - 000V
%Y 6 00°00¢‘9Y Lg'/62'8L %V 6 00°00€'9F 1g'262'8) 000 SASNAMXI ¥IHLO - 005¢ [2I0L
%E G 00°000°€ 2L129'L %E PG 00°000'c 2L129' 000 Bujurei] - 90s¢
%8°€9 00°000'8 GE'00L'S %8'€9 00°000'8 SE°00L'G 000 SNOSULJBISH - S05E
%Y L1 00°000'% 05 ¥S¥ %y Ll 00°000'% 0S'¥S¥ 000 S9IAIBG 1BYI0 B YSN - POSE
%y €E 00°000'02 vi ¥89'9 %P €E 00°000'02 yv'$89'0 000 SUOHEIIUNWWOY - £05¢
%T TG 00°00§'¥ 8y'6ve'T %2C'2G 00°00S'y 8Y'6YE'T 000 swlojlun - Z0gE
%0°0€ 00°008'9 e 02 %008 00°008'9 ZeIr0'T 000 SaInf - L0SE
SASNAJXS WIHLO - 00SE
%08l 00°000'LY 61°Gob'8 %08 00°000'L¥ 6v'G9Y'8 000 S3ANddNS '8 STVINELYIA - 00v¢ JBjoL
%8¥e 00°000'01 L 18y'e %8'¥Z 00°000°0 L 18Y'2 000 SHOAISSDY - £OVE
%E 9 00°000'Z1 19'19G'S %E 9y 00°000°Z) 19'196's 000 speoy g sBuipping - zovg
%L ) 00°000'sZ Lreey %L) 00°000'5Z (B A 000 ISIIAl ' BAIEA “UBJBIN UNPUOD - LOVE
S311ddNS B SIVINILYI - 00VE
%Z 9L 00°000'22 10'869'L1 %29l 00'000'22 10'869°L1 000 4OV LOVHLINOD - 00€€ Ie301
%00 00°000°0¢ 000 %00 00°000°0¢ 000 000 Sa0IAL9g IsIA ‘Bupssuibug - yoge
%V 61 00°000'0L 00°e¥6'} %¥61 00°000'0} 00'eye'L 000 SIOAIBSDY - £OEE
jebpng jo v, jebpng LLAON-OL Inr  39Bpngjo 9, jobpng LLAON-OL. Inr 19Bpngjo % 1obpng LL AON - O}, INP
Iv1iOL suopesadQ souaysly
1102 AON-Ajnp - sjenjoy "sA jebpng siseg |ensooy
wmhsu—_c:mnxm pue soSnuUsADY JO Jjusuwiajels deilelds

pieog aosueusjuiel @ uoneiadQ ewnyoses Wd Lvil



,w
-
g abeyd ™ WOO
H
Jebeuep sanensiuLpy - 8oV m
%L¥e 00°000'52 00°/8L'9 000 %L YT 00°000'sZ 00°281'9 ad - jeboT - L0vs ;
%82y 00'692'1L 6975/ 00’0 %8y 00'69./'L 69'VS. aleoi Auedwog . 9obs
%Y 00°000'8¥ G9°/0€'02 000 %E TV 00°000°sY §9°208'02 Aiejeg W9 - sovs
%S 2y 00°€95'9) 6V ¥€0'L 000 %Sy 00'€95'9} 8V 1¥E0'L Asejoa00g unpY - OV
%LZY 00'955°L 50°222'S 000 %L T 009652 s0'/2z'e edig Auedwo) - gops
%T Ty 0094202 08'erL's 000 %TTY 00'912'02 og'eyl's syaAdIeD - Zovs
%562 00°660'Sh 26'€16'0) 000 %G'6Z 00'660'cY 26'€16'0) *dwio SISRIOM B UIedH - LOPS
SAINIHSIA - NINAY 2 TVHINTD - 00vS
%TeY 00'996'52. 12°688°cle %Z S 00'966'62. 12'688'€1¢ 000 FAILYHLSININQY 2 TVHIANID - 666¥ IeJoL
%00 00°000'02 000 %00 00°000°02 000 000 asuadxz Jsalojul dHUNW - 06€S
%069 00°000'%} 91'860'6 %069 00°000'F1 91'860'6 000 asuadxg uonesoey - £Ees
%ETLL 00°000'% 9z'ezl'L %EeTLL 00°000'L 9z'ezs't 000 uopjepodsuel] - ZEgs
%9'€E 00°000°} 15°68¢ %9'€s 00°000't 15°5¢€ 000 UoljeuLIOfU] D[N - LEES
%00 00°000'€ 000 %0°0 00°000'¢ 000 000 SOOUIIDJUOD/IOARI |, UILIPY - 0SES
%02 00°000'¢ 00°09 %02 00°000'¢ 0009 000 suopnduasqng/Buiutes) dwy - gzeg
%1 '9v 00°005°ZL 78'5/0'8 %1 9% 00°00S'Z) 29'6/0'8 000 jueynsuog sendwo) - gLeg
%0°0 00°000'S 000 %00 00°000'G 000 000 $}9SSY PAXId UIWPY - 9LES
%SG 1L 00'562'L 05'812's %S b2 005622 05'812's 000 sang diyssaquisp - §LE5
%2 GY 00°00S'8 98'/¢8'c %2 GY 00°005'8 98'/£8'c 000 SaliN - ¥LES
%168 00°00%'8 88'Zec'e %16 00°00¢'8 8g'zee's 000 SuoneIUNWWOY - £1.£§
%802 0000021 190052 %802 00°000'2) 1970052 000 sasuadx3 ulwpyY ISIN - ZLES
%Ly 00°008'6 95'8.¢'y %L b 00°008'6 95'8.8'y 000 saseaydinbg 20140 - 1169
%092 00°00Z'LL £L'CL6'T %092 00002 L} £1'EL6'T 000 dx3 soyyo/ebeisod - 0L
%C Ty 00'66S'L¥ 26'296'LL %T Ty 00'665'LY 2629621 000 jJue)s|ssy SAlRISIUILIPY - 90ES
%GZh 00'8¥9'8¢ SLELY9L %S 2V 00'8v9'8¢ SLELY'OL 000 AIeja109g dARHSUIUILIPY - $OCS
%Z L 00'68€'29 AT IAIrA % LY 00°6€€'29 9e6v.L'/T 000 Jebeuey sApessILILPY - LOSS
%E Y 0000021} 0L'v88' LY %E TV 00°000°CH1 0L¥8E LY 000 Aiejeg Jobeueyy - 0ogcs
%LTY 00'€ZL'y 96°09.'L %L ey 00'¢ZL'y 96'09.'% 000 ulwpy 3¥vol Auedwo) - g9z5
%LTy 00Z£9'21 G162 %LT 00ZE9'LL SL'6ZS'L 000 ujwpy yoid Auedwo) - 0925
%6'Ch 00'vL 8y sL1e'02 %62y 00°'ves'sy gi'182'02 000 S¥y3d - 0529
%E 08 00°082'stL £6'8L9'cy %€ 08 00°062'h L £6'8L9'cY 000 dwog sia)IoM 8 YIeeH - 1025
%Y YeL 00°008'0¢ 00°€6S' LY %b bl 00°008'0¢ 00°€6E' LY 000 asueansuj Aypger - 00Zs
%804 00°000°€l 06'602'6 %8 0L 00°000'¢) 06'602'6 000 npNY - 1-10LS
%92y 00°000'G. 09'866'1€ %9y 00°000'S/ 09'€56°LE 000 1eba7 - 0015
%2 65 00°000°Z} 89'20L'L %2 65 00°000°24 892012 000 $994 103091 - 000§ {2101
%S'SS 00°000'2} 00'959'9 %G'6G 00°000°2) 00'959'9 000 18u3Q - S99 10§03.11Q - 000
%0°001 000 89°0vY 89°0vY 000 abea|ly 103001 - 100G
$994 10)004i( - 000G
IALLVHLSININGY *® TYHINITD - 6667
%00 00°00S'2 000 000 %00 000052 000 STYFHSIA - SISNIJXA ¥IHLO - 005¥ 18I0L
%00 000052 000 000 %0°0 00°00§'2 000 swioun - Zogy
SIARIFHSI - SISNIJXA ¥IHLO - 005V
%L} 00°000'9 GL101 000 %L} 00°000'9 SLlob SAINIHSIA - S TddNS/STIVINALYIN - 00SY [BI0L
%L L 00°000'9 GL10L 000 %LL 00°000'9 GL1ok SNosuR||39SIN - 06EY
SAIHSIA - SATAdNS/SIVINIALYI - 00EY
%e L1 00°000'8} 98Zil'e 000 %ELL 00°000°8} 98ZLL'E SAINIHSI - HOAVT LOVHLNOD - 022F lejoL
%802 00°000'S1 98°zLl'e 000 %802 00°000'G} 98Zil'e aoueuajulely syosfoid ystd - Zzzy
%00 00°000'¢ 000 000 %00 00°000'¢ 000 SOAJeA B SISO - LZZY
3obpng jo %, jebpng LLAON-OL INr  39Bpng jo % j3ebpng LLAON-OL Inf  39Bpng jo % jobpng LL AON - O}, InP
V101 suopjesado sapaysly
L1L0Z AON-A[np - sjen3ay “sA 3196png siseg [enJooy
sal su__u:mn_xm pue ssnusAdy JO juswisjels bHELZY

pieog asueuajuiely @ uonesadp ewnyosen Wd 2v:)



L abed !9:% .
%00 000002 000 000 %0°0 000002 000 poddng sjosfold Aseinquy - €0€9 ;
LNINIONVHNI LYLIEVH - 00£9
%102 00°005°28¢ 99'966'8. 000 %102 00°005'Z8¢ 99'966'8/ SHILIALLOY SAIMIAHSIA - 0029 (2101
% 00°000'8Y 062602 000 %Pt 00°000'8t 06°260'2 MBIADY 189 [OPOIN DIBMIDALY MAS - 6029
%00 00°000'8 000 000 %00 00°000°8 000 Buipung pesyjasis @ sapeisifo - 80z9
%068 00°000°08 00°€6L°1€ 000 %0°6€ 00°000'08 00°€61'LE weiBoid uopelolsay 991l YeO - L0Z9
%00 00°000'S 000 000 %00 00°000'G 000 Buipung weay ysi4 fjunog L - 909
%2 61 00°000°6. 00'626'9¢ 000 %Z 6¥ 00°000'GL 00°626'9¢ weiboid abneg weans $o8N - 5029
%L'L 00°000'6Z 68°Gey 000 %L'L 00°000's2 68'5ZY yoddng (eauyoa | ABOJOIPAH YAS - ¥0Z9
%00 00°000°0 000 000 %00 00°000°01 000 poddng |eatuyds . sjuely - £0z9
%L GG 00°000°0} 16995 000 %L'GG 00°000°0} 16'998's Buiddeny pue g1 - z0z9
%ET 00°00S°12} 0£'88.'C 000 %ET 00°005'121 0£'88.C uonejuswaldwy diNd - 1029
STILIALLOV SIHIAHSI - 0029
%61} 00'G/1'/29'L G'960'76 1 %61} 00'GL1°229') S'960'v61 000 S123ro¥d v193ds - 0009 1ejol
%6'6 00°000'002°} 18°9£8'811 %66 00°000'002°} 18°9€8'811 000 JAAUNNDIS - £019
%118 00°SZL'9L 00'2£2'29 %118 00°G41'92 0028229 000 adjueuduIR uised sLIqaQ ONeT - 2019
%0 00°000'502 £L16l'8 %0 00°000'502 £L16l'8 000 suteday auyjadid Aousbiawz 598 - 1019
%2 18 00°000'04 81'GLL'e %eLE 00°000°01 gLsLl'e 000 Buiddey pue gi9) - 2609
%00 00°005'2€ 000 %00 00°006'2¢ 000 000 uoney|igeyay diNjPNNS HIS - 9609
%S0 00°000'0S G162 %S0 00°000'0§ GL'182 000 ubisaq ¢ ueld roxdwi 998 - 2609
%0°'G 00°000'0¢ z6'88%'L %0°'G 00°000'0¢ 26'881'L 000 Jeday spunoig/Bpig 4WOD - 1-0609
%00 00°005'8L 000 %00 00°005'8} 000 000 vavos - 7909
SL23royd 1vIdAdS - 0009
%00 00°000'62 000 %00 00°000'52 000 000 sisfjeuy Jjausg /3809 - £1.5G
%00 00°000°G} 000 %00 00°000'GL 000 000 ue|d 1By 193epq Bay pejesBajy; - 0LGS
%188 00°206'062 85°GE5'ZLL 58°/6 %28 00°206'062 vl iEv'TIL SHNIHSIC - NINQY B TYHINID - 00¥S 8I0)
%00 00°0€6'vL 000 000 %00 00°0£6'p} 000 asuadxz )salaju| sjoafold ysid - 06vS
%0°001 00°00Z'c) 00°002'c) 000 %0°00} 00'002'c} 00°00Z'¢} su| fpadoud @ qer - ¢pys
%869 00°000'9 0L°Lp6'e 000 %869 00°000'9 oL'/ve's pNY - Lpps
%0°59 00°000'9 0z'668'c 000 %059 00°000'9 02'668'c N9 - asuadx3 uopesoldy - ££vs
%E 4L 00°000°'L 0L'€LL 000 %e' 1L 00°000'L 0L'ell uonepodsuei) - ZEps
%y Pl 00°000'% 6L EVL 000 % vl 00°000'L 6Lerl UojBULIONU] OHANd - LEYS
%00 00°000'c 000 000 %0°0 00'000'¢ 000 [9ARI) - OEPS
%00 00°000'¢ 000 000 %00 00°000°¢ 000 uopduasqng/uoesnpg askodwz - 5Zvs
%8 'Y 00°00S'Z 19°0L5'e 000 %8'9F 00°005'2 L9016 jueynsuog LIndwoy - gLys
%00 00°000'S 000 000 %00 00°000'G 000 S}9SSY PaXxi4 UIWPY - 911§
%9°98 001612 0S'9LY'Z 000 %9°98 00'16.'C 0591’2 sanq diyssaquay - §Lvg
%E'GE 00°00S'Y 1£'085'L 000 %E'GE 00°00§'y 1£°985°L SaBInN - bLYS
%L ¥y 00°009'c 60'609'% 68'/6 %02y 00°009'c ve LISl SUOREIIUNWWIOY - £LYG
%9'9) 00°000'9 2£'866 000 %994 00°000'9 7£'966 asuadx3 ulwpy "SIl - ZLvs
%L by 00°002'¥ Lv'9/8'L 000 %L Yy 00°002'% Lros8'L sasea / juswdinb3 82110 - L1vS
%162 00008y 86'G6E'L 000 %162 00°008'y 85°G6E'L sa||ddng 210 / sbejsod - 0Lbg
%2TG 00°228'% ) 0z 4vL'L 000 %C'Z§ 002287 0z ivL'L Juejsissy dANRNSIUIUDPY - 60VS [JOL
%y ey 00°/28'21 0Z'LpL'L 000 %y el 00°/28'LL 0z Lbl'L 19Y3Q - JUBISISSY BANRISILIWPY - 605
%0°0 00°000°¢- 000 000 %0°0 00°000°¢- 000 uoBERASIUIIPY JORIJUOD Z OO - L-60VS
juelsISSy dALRISIUILPY - 60¥S
%G Gt 00°098'92 81'602'Z1 000 %S'Gh 00'098'92 82°602'CL 1ebeuely aAneASIUIWIPY - §OVS |eJOL
%ETY 00°098'82 8/°602'2) 000 %ETY 00°098'82 8/'602'Z1 19y3Q - Jobeuey sAneASILILPY - 80VS
%0°0 00°000°2- 000 000 %00 000002 000 uoneNSIUIWPY JORIUOD T O - L-80VS
jobpng Jo 9, jebpng LLAON-OL N 39Bpngjo 9, jobpng LLAON- O Inr  30Bpngjo %, 1eBpng LL AON - 0. InP
IYLOL suopesado sauaysly

siseq jeniooy
137447142

1102 AON-AInr - sjenjoy "sA Jobpng
sainjipuadxy pue sanuaAay O Juswale}s

pieog asueuajuiely @ uonesadp ewnyosen Wd 1



g abed

%0°00%

000

S0'2€€°2ES

%Eriv'e 00'svL'se $9'L16°298 %0°526 00'SYL'ge- 65°5v9°08¢- awoau| JON
%0'vE 00'816'12¥'s 0b'995'L¥8'L %¥'6Z 00°€0L'0ov¥'e 86'698'7/8 %88V 00'618'186'L 2v'969'996 asuadx3 |gjol
%00 000 000 %00 000 000 000 Broas - sweyf Aeuspioenxy - 0096
%0700 000 00'8LE'Y 00'8lE'y 000 IOVINIVA INNOLS - 0079 [eI0L
%0°001 000 00°8LE'Y 00'8LEY 000 abeweq aui4 eysnsar - 0v9
FOVINVA INHOLS - 00¥9
%L VL 00°9¥Z'6¥8 81°008'809 000 %L 1L 00°9¥Z'6¥8 81°008'809 LNIWIDNVHNI LYLIGYH - 00€9 [2I0L
%LEL 00°9¥Z'v18 02'612'009 000 %LEL 00°9¥2'vi8 0Z'612'009 Z# Buissolg o019 ejonpd - 209 ejoL
%00 000 000 000 000 1930 - Z# Buissou) yeaI) ejony - 209
%00 00°00§'0} 000 000 %00 0000501 000 onezijigowsaQq pue dn-ues|y IS - £2-20£9
%00 00'ove'y 000 000 %00 00°9VE'y 000 a9ua Bupsixz aoeidsy - zz-20€9
%00 00°00Z'} 000 000 %00 00°002°L 000 Buiouag uoisnjoxz epyes - 12-20€9
%GZLE 00'8¥9's 00°000°Z) 000 %GZLE 00'8Y9's 00°000'2) Buipeis ysiuid wiiopad - 02-20€9
%V 6 00'8¥.'2E 00°006'0¢ 000 %Y v6 00'8¥.'28 00°006°08 u01398)0.d ado[g )20y (8IS} - 61-L0E9
%678 00'226'1S 00°080'v¥ 000 %678 0022615 00°080‘vY S3IY )20} JONIJSU0) - §L-L0£9
%6'89 00°/2¥'se 00°00V'v2 000 %689 00°/2v'se 00°00V'v2 JI9AA HO0Y JONAISUOY - L}-L0£9
%8Sy 00°000'91 00°000'Z 000 %8'Ch 00°000'91 00°000'2 shg Bugeog obpug Addy - 91-20¢9
%00 00°098's8 000 000 %00 00°09€'s8 000 sAs jesabpug ‘yeipio ejsul - §1-20€9
%00 00°zeY'sT 000 000 %00 00'2sy'sz 000 JUBWAY Jou) anfeydsy fejsul - yi-20€9
%5851 00°0ZL'C) 00°088'02 000 %6851 00°0LL'E) 00°088°02 Bugpes6 ‘daad ‘Wodwi asq py - €1-20€9
%9'8L1 00°0v9'6¢ 00°000'2¥ 000 %9811 00°0v9'68 00°000'LY petg ‘Jodw) ‘N4 Juunjquia peoy - Z1-20€9
%866 00'8¥0°08 00°000'0€ 000 %8'66 00°8¥0°0¢ 00°000°0¢ sAg payoly qejaid lleisul - L1-L0£9
%9501 00°088'4€ 00°000°0F 000 %9°601 00°088'2€ 00°000'0Y daid Bugooy d19 19nnsuog - 01-20£9
%ETE 00'992'22 000022 000 %EZE 00'992'2Z 00°002'Z daud Bunood ‘%3 48A0 - 6-20€9
%1 6y 00'862'sE 00'628' L)L 000 %1 6y 00'862'E 00'62€'2) daid Je ‘Buindyools ‘x3 aus - 8-20€9
%22G 00°022'2 90°8S0'v 000 %C'2G 00°04L'2 90°€50'y uonejabosy - U UOISOIT - £-20€9
%965 000kg'LZ GZ'26l'sl 000 %9'GS 0001822 §2'26L'GL skg Buwajemaq W ¢ O ‘11e3syl - 9-20£9
%L LvL 00'98.'02 00°005'0¢ 000 %L Ll 0098202 00°005°0¢ lesodsiq ‘uonjjowaq - §-20£9
%E8Y 1 00°000'62 00°000'Y 000 %E8YL 00°000'62 00°000'cY uoneziIqo - p-L0€9
%8201 00°008'651 ¥9ZLeTLL 000 %8201 00°008'65 1 yoTIETLL HIAIND paydly ssajwonog - £-20£9
%G GO 00°000'%¥ 66'808'82 000 %G'G9 00°000'v¥ 66'808'92 ausaaQ ‘Bugysa) ‘Bluad ‘ubisaq - 2-20€9
%GZE 00°GY.'8L 92°295'sZ 000 %828 00°S¥2'8/ 92°195'52 1oqeT - |-L0€9 [ejoL
%8S 00°000'02 2Ger9'LL 000 %285 00°000'0Z Z5Th9'LL Buriojuow [eatbojolg - 91-20€9
%Pt 00°000°¢ Lozel 000 %Yy 00°000'c L0ZEL uonensuWpy ; Bunip Jwsed - pL-20€9
%y Ly 00°000's 26°190'C 000 %Ly 00°000'S 26'/90'C UoBENSIUIWPY JOBIIUOY - I}-L0E9
%ETE 00°000'S} vy ove'y 000 %EZE 00°000°GL v ove'y lojesysiuiwpy 3o9foid - q1-20€9
%E 6L 00'svL'se /£788'0 000 %E 6 00's¥2's¢ L£788'9 1oaulbuz Juspisey - 21-L0€9
1oqeT - 1-L0€9
z# Buissoag o919 BJOINYD - 20£9
%0°0 000 000 000 000 uBisaq neday ewiejer - 90¢9
%092 00°000'¢E 86°085'8 000 %092 00°000'c€ 86°085'8 00 - subisaqg Buussuibug - pog9
jobpng jo % 1ebpng LLAON-OL N }eBpngjo o, jebpng LLAON-OL Inr 39Bpngjo o, jebpng LL AON - O}, INT
WioL suopetado salaysid

LL0Z AON-AIN[ - sjenoy "sA jaBpng
wm._su_ﬁcmaxm pue ssnusAay jo jusuwioje}s
pieog ssueusjuiely 1 uoneladQ ewnyoesn

siseq [eniaoy
Ligei

Nd Lv°L



LAIF Regular Monthly Statement Page 1 of 1

Local Agency Investment Fund

P.O. Box 942809 www.treasurer.ca.cov/pmia
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 ‘ -laif
(916) 653-3001 Decembe;O(le,

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

GENERAL MANAGER
3301 LAUREL CANYON ROAD
SANTA BARBARA, CA 93105-2017 PMIA Average Monthly Yields

Transactions

Tran Type Definitions November 2011 Statement

Account Summary
Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance: 3,861.29
Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 3,861.29

MEMO TO:  Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

© . FROM: Bruce A. Mowry, Secretary
SUBJECT: = COMB INVESTMENT POLICY

The above statement of investment activity for the month of N enerbtie, 2011, complies with legal
requirements for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. I hereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all LAIF investments of this agency for the period indicated.

Secretary s

=




SAITTA BARBARA
BANK & TRUST

P.0.Box 60839, SantaBarbara, CA93160-0839

Banking Statement
Statement Period: 11/01/2011 to 11/30/2011

Customer Number:

1702

Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Master Contract Renewal Fund

3301 Laurel Canyon Rd

Santa Barbara CA 93105-2017

Customer Service Representative
(888) 400-SBBT (400-7228)

BANKLINE-24-HOUR AUTOMATED INFORMATION
(800) 287-SBBT (287-7228)

www.sbbt.com

Business Money Market

Our Community. Your Bank. Checking Summary
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

Master Contract Renewal Fund

it is our objective to assist you in selecting products and Account Number 102335072
services that meet your personal and business needs. If Interest Paid YTD 22.04
you have any questions regarding your account, please Interest Paid Last Year 39.98

feel free to call or visit one of our bankers for assistance.

Deposit Account Recap

Beginning Balance as of

November 1, 2011 10,045.48
3 Deposits (Plus) 121,900.79

Ending Balance as of
November 30, 2011 131,946.25
interest Paid 3.79

MEMO TO: Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Bruce A. Mowry, Secretary

SUBJECT: = COMB INVESTMENT POLICY

The above statement of investment activity for the month of M, 2011, complies with legal
requirements for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. I hereby certify that it constitutes a

complete and accurate summary of all Santa Barbara Bank & Trust investments of this agency for the
period indicated.

Jg gnet (ALt TEM # 3 L
Secretary ) S




SANTA BARBARA
BANK & TRUST

P.0.Box 60839, Santa Barbara, CA93160-0839

1703

Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Cachuma Project Trust Fund

3301 Laurel Canyon Rd

Santa Barbara CA 83105-2017

Our Community. Your Bank.

It is our objective to assist you in selecting products and
services that meet your personal and business needs. If
you have any questions regarding your account, please

feel free to call or visit one of our bankers for assistance.

MEMO TQ: . Board of Directors

Banking Statement

Customer Number:

Statement Period: 11/01/2011 to 11/30/2011

Customer Service Representative

(888) 400-SBBT (400-7228)

BANKLINE-24-HOUR AUTOMATED INFORMATION

(800) 287-SBBT (287-7228)

www.sbbt.com

Public Capital Tiered MMDA '

Checking Summary
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

Cachuma Project Trust Fund

Account Number 102335080
Interest Paid YTD 344.92
Interest Paid Last Year 447.50
Deposit Account Recap
Beginning Balance as of
November 1, 2011 128,053.62
1 Deposits (Plus) 36.84
Ending Balance as of
November 30, 2011 128,090.46
Interest Paid 36.84

Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Bruce A. Mowry, Secretary

~ SUBJECT: = COMB INVESTMENT POLICY

The above statement of investment activity for the month of I\§ duarnbise 2011, complies with legal
requirements for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. I hereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all Santa Barbara Bank & Trust investments of this agency for the

period indicated.

g AL
Secretary /




7:59 AM
12112111

Accrual Basis

1050 - GEN
FUND

comb2

Payment of Claims
As of November 30, 2011

Date Num Name Memo Amount
11/07/2011 20382 COMB-Petty Cash Replenish petty cash -194.69
11/07/2011 20383 COMB - Revolving Fund Nov 11 & 25 payrolis/taxes -116,390.66
11/08/2011 20384 A-OK Mower Shops, Inc. Stihl saw/chains-oil for chainsaw -604.51
11/08/2011 20385 Acomn Landscape Management Co. Scheduled mtce -253.17
11/08/2011 20386 ACWA Health Benefits Authority (HBA) Nov EAP -49.56
11/08/2011 20387 Assoc. of California Water Agencies 2012 Agency Dues -7,055.00
11/08/2011 20388 AT&T Oct statement -476.55
11/08/2011 20389 Bedrock Building Supplies Wash plaster sand/cold patch/sack slurry/rebar -343.41
11/08/2011 20390 Brown and Caldwell Ops Sup-BCwaterjobs -200.00
11/08/2011 20391 Cardno ENTRIX Task Mgt/File Mtce/Fish Monitoring Prog Supp-Sep -401.48
11/08/2011 20392 CDPH-OCP Grade 2 Dist Cert Request-JC -80.00
11/08/2011 20393 CDPH-OCP Grade 1 Dist Cert Request-BM -70.00
11/08/2011 20394 CIO Solutions, LP Internal hard drive/usb adapters/Maintain [T-Nov -2,183.38
11/08/2011 20395 Coastal Copy, LP Mtce agmt KM-4035/TASKalpha -293.42
11/08/2011 20396 Crop Production Services, Inc Rodent bait -121.07
11/08/2011 20397 Culligan Water RO system Nov -24.95
11/08/2011 20398 Dale Francisco Oct mtg fees -132.23
11/08/2011 20399 Dennis E. Beebe Oct mig fees -156.92
11/08/2011 20400 Department of Industrial Relations Elevator Inspection fee (NP) -225.00
11/08/2011 20401 ECHO Communications Answering service -64.04
11/08/2011 20402 Environmental Systems Research Inst. Arcinfo/ArcGIS/ArcView 1/11/12-1/10/13 PO#9059 -5,836.39
11/08/2011 20403 Famcon Pipe & Supply Connection bend/couplers -139.00
11/08/2011 20404 GE Capital Lease agmt KM-4035E Billing ID#90133933786 -494 57
11/08/2011 20405 Home Depot Credit Services Stakes/sledge hammers/door locks/filler -100.80
11/08/2011 20406 James Colton Reimb D2 Application fee -85.00
11/08/2011 20407 Lauren W. Hanson Oct mtg fees -266.20
11/08/2011 20408 MarBorg Industries Portable toilets -328.30
11/08/2011 20409 Milpas Rental Vibra plate -101.88
11/08/2011 20410 Nextel Communications Cellular/equip -466.89
11/08/2011 20411 Northern Safety Co. Inc. Accumulation container (paint) PO#9057 -402.96
11/08/2011 20412 Pacific Coast Jiffy Lube Service-F150 (FD)/GM vehicle -197.97
11/08/2011 20413 Paychey, Inc. 10/14,28 payrolis/taxes -271.22
11/08/2011 20414 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services Postage meter lease 10/10/11-1/10/12 -442 .86
11/08/2011 20415 Praxair Distribution, Inc Cylinder rental -52.88
11/08/2011 20416 Quinn Company Cat keys -27.24
11/08/2011 20418 Robert R. Lieberknecht Oct mtg fees -142.43
11/08/2011 20419 Santa Barbara Concrete Cutting 10" below grade vault core hole-Foothill Rd -250.00
11/08/2011 20420 Scott Volan Oct Reimb -99.67
11/08/2011 20421 Southern California Edison Main ofc/outlying stations -1,301.83
11/08/2011 20422 State Compensation Insurance Fund Payroll Report Oct 2011 -4,244 .82
11/08/2011 20423 The Wharf Steel toe boots-FB -116.90
11/08/2011 20424  Underground Service Alert of So. Calif. New ticket charges ~72.00
11/08/2011 20425 United States Geological Survey Agmi#11WACAD44600 4th Qrtly billing Agmt Dated 10/24/11  -18,462.50
11/08/2011 20426 Vulcan Materials Company Asphait -159.80
11/08/2011 20427 W. Douglas Morgan Oct mtg fees -276.40
11/08/2011 20429 ACWA Health Benefits Auth. (HBA) 12/1111-1/1/12 coverage -18,913.23
11/08/2011 20430 Boone Graphics Business cards-AC/SV/TR -147.52
11/08/2011 20431 CIO Solutions, LP Postini-Nov -42.50
11/08/2011 20432 City of Santa-Barbara Refuse/recycle 9/29-10/24/11 -179.78
11/08/2011 20433 County of Santa--Barbara Green waste ) -81.60
11/08/2011 20434 GE Capital Lease agmt TASKalfa Billing ID#90136047559 -133.61
11/08/2011 20435 Lash Construction, Inc. Base -90.51
11/08/2011 20436 Manzanita Nursery Oaks/Sycamores/Alders -890.02
11/08/2011 20437 Melinda L. Fournier Oak Tree Restoration Program-Oct -5,996.00
11/08/2011 20438 Musick, Peeler & Garrett LLP General Counsel-Sep -9,114.80
11/08/2011 20439 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Battery -128.87
11/08/2011 20440 State Board of Equalization Water Rights Fee 7/1/11-6/30/2012 -35,707.10
11/08/2011 20441 Western Welding Rebar/safety glasses -52.54
11/08/2011 20442 WFCB-0OSH Commercial Services Misc tools for trucks/paint supplies -225.04
11/09/2011 20443 HDR Engineering, Inc. BO/FMP implem/Quiota Crk xng 6/Quiota Crk tech supp-Oct -1 1,921.76
11/09/2011 20444 Cox Communications Business internet Nov -195.00
11/09/2011 20445 Fleet Services Fuel -2,560.12
11/09/2011 20446 Prudential Overall Supply Mats -135.48
11/09/2011 20447 Republic Elevator Co. Scheduled mtce-NP elevator -278.12
11/09/2011 20448 Southern California Edison Glen Anne gate/Corona-Glen Anne Rd -46.62

# 3¢ Pagetof2



7:59 AM
12/12/11
Accrual Basis

comb2

Payment of Claims
As of November 30, 2011

Date Num Name Memo Amount
11/09/2011 20449 Staples Credit Plan Office Supplies -714.16
11/09/2011 20450 Verizon California Main ofc/outlying stations -456.06
11/10/2011 20451 Peter Lapidus Construction, Inc. Quiota Crk xng 2-Pay request #2 -186,534.00
11/10/2011 20452 Barilett, Pringle & Wolf, LLP Client #A6145.1100 Audit 10-11 -12,115.00
11/10/2011 20453 Cashier, DPR QAC cert-DN#81207 -60.00
11/10/2011 20454 Cashier, DPR QAC cert-JS#122878 -60.00
11/10/2011 20455 Verizon Wireless Cellular -122.80
11/17/2011 20456 ACWA Health Benefits Authority (HBA) Dec EAP -49.56
11/17/2011 20457  All Around Landscape Supply Tubing staple box-erosion control -99.07
11/17/2011 20458 Balance Hydrologics, Inc. SYR Model Peer Review-9/18-10/22/11 -2,097.90
11/17/2011 20459 Famcon Pipe & Supply Flanges/bolts/nets/gaskets/connectors -826.45
11/17/2011 20460 Grainger Poison ivy protectant/anti-skid tapeffixed ladder -1,754.67
11/17/2011 20461 Hydrex Pest Control Co. Ant/pest control -84.00
11/17/2011 20462 J&C Services Cleaning services 10/14,21,28, 11/4 -600.00
11/17/2011 20463 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. Wall mount-walk through dock ladder PO#9065 -171.14
11/17/2011 20464 Megan Emami Reimb-workshop travel -152.74
11/17/2011 20465 WMid-State Concrete Products Catch basin box and steel grate PO#9067 -975.14
11/17/2011 20466 Milpas Rental Jumping jack -134.65
11/17/2011 20467 Pacific Coast Jiffy Lube Service-Explorer -48.58
11/17/2011 20468 Santa Barbara News Press Ops Sup ad -341.52
11/17/2011 20469 Santa Ynez River Water Cons. Dist. ID# Stetson-RiverWare Aug-Sep -425.89
11/17/2011 20470 Southern California Edison Foothill Rd -40.86
11/17/2011 20471 SWRCB Fees Annual fee-waste discharge requirement 7/1/11-6/30/12 -1,943.00
11/17/2011 20472 Verizon California SCADA -522.29
11/17/2011 20473 B & B Surplus, Inc. Galvanized angle PO#9066 -117.98
11/28/2011 20474 Department of Public Health Dist Cert Renewal Grade D1-JSmith #35619 -70.00
11/28/2011 20475 RKA Consulting Group Engineering services-MURRP Sep/Oct -39,842.50
11/29/2011 20476 Cachuma O & M Board-Renewal Fund  1D#1/CVWD Renewal Fund assessments transfer -40,632.00
11/30/2011 20477 Dale Francisco Re-issued non-cashed per diem cks Jan-May 2011 -1,049.30

Total 1050 - GENERAL FUND

-542,522.03

-542,522.03




CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: December 19, 2011

Submitted by:  Bruce Mowry

Approved by: Bruce Mowry

SUBJECT: Modified Upper Reach Reliability Project Construction Contract Award

SUMMARY:

The contract documents have been issued and bids are scheduled to be opened at 3:00 PM on
Wednesday, December 14, 2011. The Bid Tabulation has not been completed and will be furnished to
the Board at a later time.

¢ Modified Upper Reach Reliability Project reconstructs the South Portal structure in the original
location with splitting flow into the old 48 inch pipeline and new 48 inch pipeline with a magnetic
flow meter. Intertie old and new pipelines at a location past the Glen Annie Turn Out structure to
give higher reliability and flexibility, including operational options to feed Goleta West. In addition
to this work the Goleta West Meter will be replaced with a new magnetic flow meter and
Air/Vac/Blow-off structures will be rehabilitated to ensure reliability of the existing upper reach
pipeline.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project Budgeted under Special Projects Account Number 6103
Fiscal Year 2011-2012 Phase 1 value of $1,200,000
Total cost of Project valued at $4,200,000 including grant allowance of $3,200,000

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:

General Counsel participated in the development of the Contract Documents

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

All required permits have been obtained with the exception of the Bureau of Reclamation permit that will
be issued after the drawings have been stamped and signed in January 2012. The Bureau of
Reclamation has reviewed the Contract Documents and their comments have been incorporated into the
documents. The review and approval in January by the Bureau should move ahead quickly and not
impact the schedule of work.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

N/A

RECOMMENDATION:




Motion to award the construction contract as defined in the project "Modified Upper Reach Reliability
Project dated October 2011” Contract Documents to the lowest responsive bidder

for the amount of $ ; and
authorizes COMB General Manager to sign and execute the contract documents inclusive of Addendums
No. 1 thru No. 3 and after submittal of all required documents from the bidder.

(Motion vote by roll call)

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

N/A




CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: 12/19/2011

Submitted by: Bruce Mowry
Administration
Approved by: Committee

SUBJECT: Change in Job Description for COMB’s Engineer positibn

SUMMARY:

The General Manager is requesting the Board's consideration of a revised job description and
commensurate salary range increase for the Engineer position which, once approved, will include
management of the field crew operations division.

COMB’s Engineer submitted his resignation effective December 16, 2011. In an effort to find a
replacement for this position, it was discovered that the current salary range is sub par within industry
standards and will not attract and retain a qualified Professional Engineer candidate. In anticipation of
the MURRP project commencing, | feel it necessary to change the Engineers job description to include
management of the operations field crew and increase the salary range to become commensurate with
the responsibilities and duties of the new position. The job description and salary range are attached as
exhibits to this memo.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The current FY 2011-12 COMB Budget will not be amended to accommodate the change in salary range
due fo the vacancy of the Operations Supervisor position since the beginning of the fiscal year.

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

N/A

COMMITTEE STATUS:

The Administration Committee reviewed the concept of revising the job description and salary range for
the Engineer position at the 12/09/2011 Administration Committee meeting.

RECOMMENDATION:

The COMB Board approve the revised job description and salary range maximum of $120,000 for the
Engineer / Operations Manager position.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

1. Engineer / Operations Manager Job Description
2. Engineer / Operations Manager Salary Range




Exhibit 1

Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board
2011

ENGINEER / OPERATIONS MANAGER

DEFINITION

Under the direction of the General Manager, the Engineer / Operations Manager will perform a wide
variety of professional Engineer work for Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board’s (COMB) Capital
Improvement Program related to the planning, design, construction, operation and rehabilitation of
Cachuma Project structures and facilities used for water storage, water supply and transmission. The
Engineer / Operations Manager prepares plans, specifications, and cost estimates; organizes, manages,
directs, and supervises COMB’s engineering functions; acts as a liaison between the public and federal,
state and local governmental agencies; handles utilities rights-of-way; oversee and manage the
Maintenance Management Program; provides project coordination and direction to technical engineering
staff; manages operations division field crew; serves as the agency engineer on construction projects; and
performs related duiies as assigned.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

The Engineer / Operations Manager is a single-position classification responsible for performing
professional engineer work in the design and construction of a wide variety of complex engineering
projects. Individuals in this class exercise considerable discretion and judgment in the coordination
and prioritization of projects including, but not limited to, planning, designing and coordinating projects
as well as contract administration. The Engineer / Operations Manager reports to and assists the
General Manager in both long-range planning, budget preparation, and project management for capital
improvement projects. The Engineer / Operations Manager coordinates activities to be completed by
the engineering technical staff, COMB field crew, outside contraciors, or engineering consultants.

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES ~ Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

e Responsible for the development and implementation of a capital improvement program and
budget for major construction projects for COMB facilities.

e Provides general guidance related to engineering functions for COMB projects, and coordinates
projects with professional engineering consultants, including the approval of plans and
specifications developed by consultants.

e Coordinates and supervises the development of capital improvement projects, including
contract administration, environmental compliance, permit acquisition, preparation of bid
documents and contracts, consultant and contractor coordination, and construction monitoring.

e Directs the preparation and reviews a variety of engineering reports and technical analyses.

e Represents COMB in coordinating with other utilities, regulatory agencies, governmental bodies,
planning agencies, trade and professional associations, technical groups, and developers.

e Coordinates the progress, inspection, and proper completion of major construction projects.

e Interprets and ensures compliance with all agency policies and procedures, standards of quality
and safety, and all applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations.

5

ot

Nj




Engineer / Operations Manager Page 2

e Trains, schedules, supervises and evaluates the performance of COMB technical engineering
staff as well as the COMB operations field crew engaged in the operation, maintenance,
rehabilitation and betterment of the Cachuma Project and related facilities; implemenis
disciplinary action as appropriate.

e Oversees the Maintenance Management program; reviews completed work orders and directs
work order scheduling.

e Collects and maintains data on water supply resources; uses data to update and refine
operational criteria to optimize system yield from surface sources.

o Works with operations and maintenance staff to develop safety and fraining programs.

e Performs general administrative duties as required, including but not limited to attending and
conducting meetings, preparing Board reports and correspondence, compiling data for reporis,
entering computer data, and preparing spreadsheets, efc.

OTHER DUTIES

e Regularly updates the General Manager regarding projects and personnel issues.

e Represents the General Manager at meetings and conferences as delegated.

e Provides support to the General Manager in making presentations regarding engineering issues
to the Board of Directors.

e Performs related duties as assigned.

ABILITY TO:

e Plan, organize, and develop COMB engineering functions, particularly as they affect water storage
and distribution system rehabilitation.

e Interpret, analyze and apply federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, policies and
procedures pertaining to assigned areas of responsibility.

¢ Develop long-range capital improvement programs to implement agency goals, objectives,
policies, procedures, and work standards.

e Determine work priorities and scope, and effectively coordinate and schedule resources and
staff to perform activities and projects within time limits.

e Schedule, train, supervise and evaluate the performance of staff, deal constructively with
conflict and develop effective resolutions.

e Exercise sound independent judgment within general policy guidelines.

e Read and interpret blueprints, maps, drawings and documents related to water projects, and
collect, compile, analyze, organize and present technical and statistical information.

e Read, write and speak English fluently; communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in
writing; prepare and present written and oral technical reports, using good grammar and writing
skills.

S

R

3




Engineer / Operations Manager Page 3

e Perform required mathematical computations with accuracy.

e Adhere to prescribed work schedule to conduct job responsibilities.

KNOWLEDGE OF:

¢ Principles and practices of civil engineering and engineering economics with particular emphasis on
the design and construction of water distribution systems and/or other hydraulic projects and
facilities.

e Federal, state, and local laws, codes, rules, regulations and standards affecting areas of
responsibility.

e Budget development, fiscal controls, and capital improvement cost development.
e Contract development and administration.

¢ Principles of organizational management, planning, staffing, supervision, and employee
development.

e Administrative principles and methods, including goal setting, planning, program and budget
development and implementation.

e Organizational and management practices as applied fo the engineering functions and
operational needs.

e Computer systems and software packages related to engineering analysis and functions as well as
for word and data processing, spreadsheet preparation, graphics, Geographic Information
Systems, and SCADA applications.

e Technical issues involved in the operation and maintenance of water facilities and pipelines.

¢ Professional standards for the development of operation and maintenance programs as applied
to planning, permitting and environmental review.

e Business letter and report writing, English usage, spelling, grammar and punciuation.

REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS

Graduation from an accredited college or university with a Bachelor of Science degree in
engineering. Upper division course work in hydrology or water resources is highly desirable.

Minimum of five years of increasingly responsible professional engineering experience in design and
construction of pipeline, irrigation, flood control, water treatment, water distribution, or wastewater
treatment facilities, including at least two years in a management or supervisory capacity.

LICENSE / CERTIFICATE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENT

Possession of a valid and current Ceriificate of Registration as a Civil Engineer issued by the
State of California.




Engineer / Operations Manager Page 4

Possession of a valid California Class C Drivers License and an insurable driving record. Failure
to obtain or maintain such required license(s) may be cause for disciplinary action. Individuals
who do not meet this requirement due to a physical disability will be considered for
accommodation on a case-by-case basis.

Possession of a Grade [V Water Distribution Certificate preferred.

Must pass a pre-employment physical, which includes drug screening.

COMPENSATION TYPE

Salaried (Exempt Employee)

TYPICAL PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee fo
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Requires the ability to sit at desk and intermittently walk, stand, climb, balance, stoop, kneel, bend,
crouch, crawl, push, pull and reach while performing office duties and/or field work; operate motor
vehicles; enter confined spaces and engage in work activities therein; lift and/or move up to 25 pounds
frequently and up to 40 pounds occasionally; use hands to finger, handle, feel or operate objects, tools
and controls. Must be able to work effectively despite occasional exposure to adverse environmental
conditions, including extreme weather conditions, heights, confined spaces, wetness, humidity, noise,
air contaminants, fumes, dust, grease / oil, solvents, machinery hazards, traffic hazards, etc. Must be
able to maintain effective audio-visual discrimination and perception needed for making observations,
communicating with others, reading and writing, and operating office equipment and hand tools. Must
be able to use a telephone to communicate verbally and a keyboard to communicate through written
means, to review information and enter/retrieve data, to see and read characters on a computer screen.




SCYIQD 0182 211 L J1gV.L AHVIVS\SIHYTVS\LIDANE GWO\sIosyspesids 130X IS

=
é

Exhibit 2

HOUs £} Y
IA08Y d3LS FHL WOHA NOLLONATY 4318 %2 ONISN ITVIOS Avd  LL-Inr-L0

cl-110Z Ad
(6002/1/2 9A1399))0 9SBIOUI YOO SNOIABLd) LLOZ ‘L AN HALLOTLAT - AVd ATMIIMIE - STRIVIVS SINOD




AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1, THE
CACHUMA CONSERVATION RELEASE BOARD, THE SANTA YNEZ RIVER
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT AND THE CACHUMA OPERATION
AND MAINTENANCE BOARD CONCERNING JOINT DEFENSE AND
COOPERATION IN THE CACHUMA PROJECT PERMIT PROCEEDINGS
AND THE CACHUMA PROJECT ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT MATTERS

This Joint Defense and Cooperation Agreement (referred to herein as the
“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of December , 2011 and is intended to
define the terms and conditions upon which the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation
District, Improvement District No. 1 (referred to herein as “I.D. No. 1”), the Cachuma
Conservation Release Board (referred to herein as “CCRB”), the Santa Ynez River Water
Conservation District (referred to herein as “SYRWCD”) and the Cachuma Operation
and Maintenance Board (referred to herein as “COMB”)(collectively the “Parties” or
individually a “Party” ) will cooperate in connection with: (1) ongoing hearings before
the California State Water Resources Control Board (referred to herein as “State Board”)
regarding appropriative water rights permits 11308 and 11310 previously issued for the
Cachuma Project (the “Cachuma Project”) and litigation that may arise out of those
hearings (“Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings”), and (2) proceedings and matters
including potential litigation involving the National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”)
Endangered Species Act listing of steelhead/rainbow trout as related to the continuing
operation of the Cachuma Project (“Cachuma Project ESA Matters”).

THIS JOINT DEFENSE AND COOPERATION AGREEMENT IS
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING RECITALS:

A. I.D. No. 1 was formed by SYRWCD to provide a water supply for an
extensive unincorporated area of the County of Santa Barbara, CCRB was formed to
represent its member agencies, consisting of the City of Santa Barbara, the Goleta Water
District, the Carpinteria Valley Water District and the Montecito Water District, in
connection with the use and application of water developed from the Cachuma Project in
Santa Barbara County, California, and SYRWCD was formed to protect the interests of
landowners and residents within its boundaries, generally the lands within the Santa Ynez
River watershed downstream of Bradbury Dam of the Cachuma Project. The Carpinteria
Valley Water District withdrew from CCRB effective December 31, 2010. COMB was
initially formed in 1956 and is responsible for operation, repair and maintenance of
Cachuma Project facilities except Bradbury Dam through a March 1, 2003 “Contract For
The Transfer of The Operation and Maintenance Of The Cachuma Transferred Project
Works” with the United States Bureau of Reclamation (referred to herein as
“Reclamation”). The member agencies of CCRB, LD. No. 1 and the Carpinteria Valley
Water District are commonly referred to as the “Cachuma Member Units”; and

B. Reclamation holds the appropriative water rights permits (11308 and
11310) for the Cachuma Project and owns and operates Bradbury Dam on the Santa Ynez
River for the purpose of providing a water supply to the Cachuma Member Units which

EAC/GK Redraft




iy
YR
i [

i H
Lo

are the Cachuma Project beneficiaries, sponsors and financial supporters of the Cachuma
Project;

C. By Agreement dated December 17, 2002, 1.D. No. 1, CCRB, SYRWCD
and the City of Lompoc entered into a comprehensive Settlement Agreement concerning
operation of the Cachuma Project (“Settlement Agreement”), settling longstanding
disputes between various parties to the Settlement Agreement, final implementation of
portions of which need to be confirmed through the Cachuma Project Permit
Proceedings, and since that time the Parties have been working cooperatively concerning
the Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings, Cachuma Project ESA Matters, and other
matters;

D. The Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings are ongoing and it is anticipated
that there will be additional hearings on the State Board’s Final Environmental Impact
Report (“EIR”) to be issued by the State Board in connection with its review of
Reclamation’s continuing operation of the Cachuma Project ; and, one or more hearings
on a draft water rights order or decision that is anticipated to be issued by the State Board
sometime in the future;

E. It is further anticipated that judicial proceedings will follow the issuance
by the State Board of a water rights decision or order regarding Cachuma Project permits
11308 and 11310 in which LD. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCDmay participate as
petitioners or respondents/real parties-in-interest, depending upon the substance of the
anticipated State Board water rights order or decision;

F. LD. No. 1, CCRB, SYRWCD and certain COMB staff are also jointly
involved in the on-going Cachuma Project ESA matters. Re-consultation proceedings
have been initiated by NMFS and Reclamation that relate to the preparation of a new
Biological Opinion (“BiOp”) that may include components of the 2000 BiOp regarding
continuing operation of the Cachuma Project;

G. The Parties have a mutual interest in the continuing operation of the
Cachuma Project that they desire to further maintain and, in support of those interests,
I.D. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD wish to coordinate and cooperate in their respective
legal representation before state and federal agencies and the courts and preserve the
confidentiality of certain communications in accordance with this Agreement and
applicable law, while acknowledging and reserving their differences;

H. ILD. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD are parties to a Joint Defense and
Cooperation Agreement dated as of March 1, 2011 relating to the Cachuma Project

Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project ESA Matters (referred to herein as the
“March 1, 2011 JDCA”); and

I The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of

including COMB staff, legal counsel and consultants in certain joint defense,
confidentiality and cooperation obligations and protections as specified herein.

EAC/GK Redraft

|




NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. MARCH 1, 2011 JDCA. This Agreement shall not be construed as
modifying or otherwise affecting the March 1, 2011 JDCA, which shall remain in full
force and effect.

2. RESERVATION OF LEGAL RIGHTS. This Agreement is intended to
coordinate legal efforts with respect to well recognized and commonly understood shared
interests in the Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project ESA
Matters. This Agreement is also intended to benefit ID No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD by
efficiently and effectively developing and presenting information, performing
obligations, and complying with the terms, conditions and regulatory requirements
related to continuing operation of the Cachuma Project, in coordination with one another
and without duplication of effort. Each Party and each member agency or represented
interest, as applicable, shall be free and reserves all rights to maintain separate positions,
to obtain additional information or material and to independently represent their
individual interests as they may see such interests to be without restriction or impairment
by this Agreement.

3. LEGAL REPRESENTATION AND EXPENSES. COMB will be
responsible for payment of all legal fees and expenses incurred by legal counsel retained
by COMB. COMB will have no obligation for payment of legal fees or expenses
incurred by counsel retained by any other Party. This Agreement is not intended to
disturb existing relationships between the Parties and their respective legal counsel or
interfere with each Party’s use of their respective legal counsel in the future, whether
related to the Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings, the Cachuma Project ESA Matters,
subsequent litigation or otherwise.

4. CONSULTANTS AND CONSULTANT EXPENSES. COMB will be
responsible for payment of all fees and expenses incurred by consultants retained by
COMB including but not limited to fisheries consultants. COMB will have no obligation
for payment of fees or expenses incurred by consultants retained by any other Party. This
Agreement is not intended to disturb existing relationships between the Parties and their
respective consultants or interfere with each Party’s use of their respective consultants in
the future, whether related to the Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings, the Cachuma
Project ESA Matters, subsequent litigation or otherwise.

S. SCOPE OF COMB INVOLVEMENT. For purposes of this Agreement,
the scope of COMB’s support of I.D. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD in the Cachuma
Project Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project ESA Matters will be limited in
accordance with this paragraph 5. To assist I.D. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD in the
Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project ESA Matters, COMB’s
staff and fisheries consultants (Dr. Timothy Robinson, or such fisheries consultants as
COMB may retain) may collect fisheries data, carry out analyses, and prepare reports, as
needed, at the request of and in coordination with the staffs of, and consultants retained
by, ID. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD including but not limited to Cardno Entrix (Jean

EAC/GK Redraft

=

ol




r

H
it

J
O

n
B

r\.

-
s’

~
]

P L Py
Lo/ L

Baldrige), Hanson Environmental (Dr. Charles Hanson), and Stetson Engineers (Ali
Shahroody).  All fisheries data collected pursuant to this Agreement, and all
communications, analyses or reports regarding such data, shall be maintained on a
confidential basis by all Parties in accordance with paragraph 13 of this Agreement.

6. COOPERATION. The Parties, with assistance from their respective
legal counsel, will cooperate in the development of materials and positions to be
presented by ILD. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD in the Cachuma Project Permit
Proceedings and the Cachuma Project ESA Matters. The parties shall mutually develop
communication protocols between themselves for purposes of effectuating this
Agreement. Each Party shall be responsible for the cost of their respective staffs and
consultants.

7. ADMINISTRATION. For the purpose of preserving attorney work-
product privileges and other appropriate restrictions on the use of materials that are
developed for the work necessary for the Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings and the
Cachuma Project ESA Matters, including any subsequent litigation, Downey Brand, LLP,
Best Best & Krieger, LLP, Young Wooldridge, LLP, and Musick, Peeler & Garrett, LLP
may share legal advice and opinions regarding the work described in this Agreement.

8. IMPLEMENTATION. The Parties and their respective legal counsel
shall all use their best efforts to ensure that the activities outlined in this Agreement are
carried out to effectuate the purposes of this Agreement.

9. TERM. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect when
executed by the Parties until withdrawal by COMB, or by any two other Parties in which
case this Agreement shall terminate. The Parties shall each have the right to withdraw
from this Agreement upon 30 days advance written notice to the other Parties. Upon a
Party’s withdrawal, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect as to the other
Parties.  The Parties’ respective obligations to maintain the confidentiality of
communications and information, as provided in this Agreement, shall survive a Party’s
withdrawal from this Agreement and the termination of this Agreement.

10. CONFIDENTIAL STATEMENTS. Pursuant to the provisions of
California Evidence Code, Section 1152, and the Federal Rules of Evidence, Rule 408,
all offers, statements and commitments prepared or presented during the course of this
Agreement shall remain confidential to the Parties to this Agreement and shall not be
used against any Party to this Agreement or its member agencies or constituents for any
purpose in any administrative or judicial proceeding.

11. CONTINUED USE OF CONSULTANTS. The shared work product and
opinions developed during the term of this Agreement by any consultant referenced in
this Agreement are developed for the purpose of the Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings
and the Cachuma Project ESA Matters, including any related judicial proceedings, and
may be used by L.D. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD for those purposes. Any consultant
referenced in the Agreement and employed in the preparation, presentation, review and

EAC/GK Redraft

T

H

|




development of the shared work product and opinions shall not, by reason of that work,
be precluded from representation of the Party who has retained that consultant in these
same proceedings and matters or in any other on-going or future proceedings that are
unrelated. It is the express understanding and agreement of the Parties that each
consultant referenced in this Agreement and employed on behalf of one of the Parties for
the Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project ESA Matters, may
continue to work as a consultant or an expert witness before any administrative or judicial
proceeding involving the Santa Ynez River or otherwise on behalf of the Party that
retained them.

12. ACCESS TO INFORMATION. 1D. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD shall
have access to, and the right to use for purposes of the hearings before the Cachuma
Project Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project ESA Matters, any and all
information, data, summaries, charts, programs and other materials developed by COMB
or jointly developed by the Parties prior to or during the term and pursuant to this
Agreement. In the event any third party seeks disclosure of information developed
pursuant to this Agreement, the Parties shall cooperate and mutually agree in determining
whether, and to what extent, such information shall be disclosed.

13. CONFIDENTIALITY OF COMMUNICATIONS. Each Party agrees to
receive and hold in confidence the contents and embodiments of any and all oral or
written communications exchanged between or among the Parties and their respective
counsel relating to the Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project
ESA Matters, whether or not such communications are otherwise privileged or protected.
No Party or its legal counsel shall disclose any such communication to any person or
entity that is not either an employee, officer, director, consultant, expert or legal counsel
of a Party or legal counsel for a Party who is directly involved in the Cachuma Project
Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project ESA Matters without the written consent of
the other Parties and their legal counsel, or without a court order or valid compulsory
process compelling such disclosure nor shall any Party or its counsel utilize such joint
defense communication for any purpose other than as provided in this Agreement;
provided, however, any of the Parties may share such confidential communications with
their respective members or other agencies within their jurisdiction provided that such
third parties execute a joint defense agreement containing similar provisions as this
agreement concerning confidential communications. However, the Parties acknowledge
to the extent COMB carries out other activities and projects not subject to this
Agreement, information and data derived in conjunction with such efforts may constitute
public records subject to disclosure.

14. LIMITATION OF SHARED INFORMATION. Nothing in this
Agreement is intended to: (1) limit or prohibit any Party from using or developing for its
own use, any information, technical, legal, or other work product, or retaining its own
consultants, for the development of information and work product, all of which may be
used for any purpose; (2) preclude any Party from communicating confidentially with its
own employees, officers, directors, legal counsel, consultants, or experts; (3) require any

EAC/GK Redraft




Party, or its legal counsel, to share any independently generated privileged or confidential
information, communication, documentation, or attorney work product; or, (4) limit or
constrain the use by any Party of information that was prepared solely by that Party, its
legal counsel or their agents, in a context unrelated to this Agreement, provided the
confidentiality provided through this Agreement is preserved.

1S. NO ADMISSIONS OR LIMITATIONS ON CONFLICTS. No Party,
by entering into, or by complying with its obligations under, this Agreement, waives or
releases any of its rights, contentions or positions with respect to the Cachuma Project
Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project ESA Matters, except as specifically
provided herein, nor shall this Agreement operate or be construed as an admission by any
party of any liability or obligation other than those created by this Agreement. Nothing
in this Agreement shall be construed to conflict with or otherwise affect the separate and
independent representation of each Party by its respective counsel according to what its
counsel believes to be in that Party's best interest, nor to create an attorney-client
relationship between any Party and any counsel retained by any other Party. Each of the
Parties understands that it is represented by its own legal counsel in this matter and
although legal counsel representing another Party have a duty to preserve the confidences
disclosed to them pursuant to this Agreement, each legal counsel will be acting only as
the legal counsel for their respective client and will owe a duty of loyalty only to their
client. It is further agreed that no legal counsel who has entered into this Agreement shall
be disqualified from examining or cross-examining any Party who testifies in the
proceedings related to the Cachuma Project Permit Proceedings and the Cachuma Project
ESA Matters, merely because of such legal counsel’s participation in or withdrawal from
this Agreement.

16. INDEMNIFICATION. LD. No. 1, CCRB and SYRWCD (collectively
“Indemnifying Parties™) agree jointly to indemnify, defend and hold harmless COMB and
its directors, officers, employees and agents (collectively “Indemnified Parties”) from and
against all liability, losses, damages, claims and expenses, including without limitation
reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising from or relating to work performed by COMB or its
employees or agents at the request of the Indemnifying Parties which is not covered by
insurance maintained by COMB. The scope of this indemnification obligation
specifically includes, but is not limited to, any action, lawsuit or proceeding brought
against COMB alleging that the information or data generated or maintained by COMB
pursuant to paragraph 5 constitutes a disclosable public record pursuant to the California
Public Records Act or comparable federal authority and that COMB has refused to
release such information or data consistent with its obligations herein. However, the
Indemnifying Parties will have no obligations whatsoever under this paragraph 16 to
indemnify or hold harmless the Indemnified Parties for any liability, losses, damages,
claims or expenses caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Indemnified Parties.
The Indemnifying Parties respective indemnification obligations shall be limited as
follows: LD. No. 1 —-20%, CCRB — 60% and SYRWCD - 20%.

17. ASSIGNABILITY AND SUCCESSION. This Agreement shall not be
assignable without the prior written consent of the other Parties, who shall have the

EAC/GK Redraft




discretion to consent or not to consent to any proposed assignment; provided that the
rights and obligations of this Agreement shall automatically inure to any successor in
interest to the Parties. Any attempted assignment without the approval of the Parties
shall be void and of no force or effect.

18. CONSTRUCTION. The provisions of this Agreement shall be liberally
construed to effectuate its purposes. The language of all parts of this Agreement shall be
construed simply according to its plain meaning and shall not be construed for or against
either Party, as each Party has participated in the drafting of this document and had the
opportunity to have their counsel review it.

19. AUTHORITY. The individuals executing this Agreement represent and
warrant that they have the authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform all acts
required by this Agreement, and that the consent, approval or execution of or by any third
party is not required to legally bind either Party to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire
understanding and agreement of the Parties, and supersedes all prior agreements and
understandings, oral and written, between the Parties. There have been no binding
promises, representations, agreements, warranties or undertakings by any of the Parties,
either oral or written, of any character or nature, except as stated in this Agreement. This
Agreement may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in writing,
executed by the Parties to this Agreement and by no other means. Each Party waives its
future right to claim, contest or assert that this Agreement was modified, canceled,
superseded or changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.

21. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original (including copies sent to a Party by facsimile
transmission or in portable document format (pdf)) as against the Party signing such
counterpart, but which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

22. SEVERABILITY. If any term, provision or covenant of this Agreement
shall be or become illegal, null, void or against public policy, or shall be held by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, null, void or against policy, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and shall not be
affected, impaired or invalidated. The term, provision or covenant that is so invalidated,
voided or held to be unenforceable, shall be modified or changed by the Parties to the.
extent possible to carry out the intentions and directives of this Agreement.

23. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS. The Parties acknowledged that there is a
difference of opinion among some of the Parties as to COMB’s scope, authorization and
authorities for COMB to perform fish activities and projects and related matters.
Notwithstanding, by entering into and performing their respective obligations under this
Agreement, the Parties expressly reserve and do not waive or release any of their rights,
contentions or positions with respect to such matters, nor shall the Parties by entering into

EAC/GK Redraft




7
I

LT

=]

| —

-]

[
[M N
o
o

this Agreement or performing hereunder operate or be construed as an admission by any
Party or be admissible in any administrative or judicial proceeding for any such purposes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of
the date and year first written above.

SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT,
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

By

Dennis Beebe, President

CACHUMA CONSERVATION RELEASE BOARD

By

Lauren Hanson, President

SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

By

Jon Picciuolo, President

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

By

Lauren Hanson, President

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Best Best & Krieger, LLP

By

Gregory Wilkinson

EAC/GK Redraft




Downey Brand, LLP

By

Kevin M. O’Brien

Young Wooldridge, LLP

By

Ernest A. Conant

Musick Peeler & Garrett, LLP

By

Anthony Trembley

EAC/GK Redraft




CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
Administration Committee Meeting

3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105

Friday, December 9, 2011
10:00 A.M.

AGENDA

COMB Compensation
a. Engineer Recruitment

Review of Topics of Interest with the County

CONSIDER COMB FY 2010 - 2011 AUDIT (For Review, Discussion, and Development
of Recommendations)

Adjournment

[This Agenda was Posted at 3301 Laurel Canyon Road,
Santa Barbara, CA. and Notices and Delivered in
Accordance with Section 54954.1 and .2 of the
Government Code.}




Operations Report- December 2011

The average flow from Lake Cachuma into the Tecolote Tunnel for November was 59.05 acre-

feet per day. The lake elevation was 746.80 at the beginning of the month and 746.14 at the end. The
storage change was -2,030 acre-feet. 37.9 Acre-feet of State Water Project water was delivered to South

Coast Member Units during the month.

Activities conducted this period include:

Replaced the man ways on four Air/Vac structures in the lower reach from Cater Water
Treatment plant to Sheffield Station. Also upgraded blow off structures in this segment of
pipeline during the two day shutdown. Staff also obtained the necessary Caltrans permits to
perform the work in Hwy 192. Procured all valves and pipes for both structures upgraded by
staff and the contractor. The contractor performed work on one Air/Vac and one Blow Off
structure located in Hwy 192.

Install a new ladder with proper safety cage in the Carpinteria Reservoir valve pit area and also
cored a drain in another valve vault that held water at this location. This access ladder was
noted by our insurance company to be installed. Staff will procure and install safety cages on
the existing ladders next month.

Stabilized a slope along the access road up to the Glen Annie Turn Out and had a contractor
pave the road to improve access for chlorine deliveries to this structure.

Installed security/safety lights on the front and side of the Board Room Building

Routine monthly operation and maintenance activities conducted during this period included:

Daily structure maintenance per maintenance program

Water samples taken at the North Portal Intake Tower

Fish screens were pulled and cleaned

Monitored conduit right-of-way and responded to Dig Alert reports

Read peizometers and underdrains at Glen Anne, Lauro, Ortega, and Carpinteria Dams
Place rodent bait all traps all facilities

Meter reads, monthly dam inspections, and venturi meters flushed

Monitor dam inspections and send report to USBR

Weekly safety meetings

Watered oak trees in our mitigation area




Clean Drainways at Ortega Reservoir and Carpinteria Reservoir
Install pump at Lauro Debris Basin

Right-of-Way clearing at Glen Anne Canyon

SCADA System Repair

Pesticide Applicators Professional Association (PAPA) Training




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

MEMORANDUM
DATE: December 19, 2011
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Tim Robinson, Sr. Resource Scientist

Bruce Mowry, General Manager
RE: November 2011 LOWER SANTA YNEZ RIVER FISHERIES REPORT

In compliance with the Cachuma Project Biological Opinion (BO) and as described in the Lower
Santa Ynez River Fish Management Plan (FMP) and the Monitoring Program in the revised
Biological Assessment (BA), the Cachuma Project Biology Staff (CPBS) conducts routine
monitoring of steelhead/rainbow trout and their habitat on the Lower Santa Ynez River (LSYR)
below Bradbury Dam. The following is a list of activities carried out by CPBS during the month of
November 2011 that has been broken out by categories.

Thermograph Network:

All thermographs were deployed at the beginning of June to record water temperatures at all
designated locations within the LSYR mainstem and several tributaries. All thermographs were
picked up this month in anticipation of the winter and high flow season. The units are downloaded
monthly and the results are summarized in the Annual Monitoring Report.

Lake Cachuma Water Quality Profiles:

CPBS conducted their monthly water quality profile (temp and DO) at the intake barge for the
Hilton Creek Watering System within Lake Cachuma. The lake turned over on 10/28/11 after a
cooling event with wind. This monitoring effort is done from May through November to track water
quality and lake stratification to depth.

Tributary Project Updates:
- Quiota Creek Crossing 2: This project has been successfully completed. The final paper
work and reporting are in process and will be completed shortly. The County, landowners,
regulatory agencies and the public are very pleased with the outcome of the project.

- Quiota Creek Crossing 7: We are working on getting 100% design approval from NMFS
and the County, as well as moving our permit applications forward.

- Quiota Creek Crossing 1: Staff will be submitting all permits for this project during
December or January. The design level is currently at 90% and these drawings plus technical
hydraulic memo will be submitted to NMFS and the County for their review. If successful with
both pending grant applications, this project will be constructed in the fall, 2013 (date
correction from the last Fisheries Report).

- El Jaro Creek at Cross Creek Ranch: The repairs on the two upstream rock weirs were
successfully completed on 12/1/11. A final report is in process that will go to the granting
(CDFG) and the regulatory agencies, and is expected to be completed by the end of
December.




Surcharge Water Accounting:

The following is a table (Table 1) of the amount of Surcharge water used to date from each of the
three accounts. All numbers come from Reclamation’s Daily Operations Report. The start time for
the use of the Surcharge Water Accounts was 5/27/11, or the last day of full surcharge.

Table 1: Summary of the surcharge water accounting.

Accounts* Allocation  Amount Used*™ Amount Remaining
Units: (acre-feet) (acre-feet) (acre-feet)

Fish Passage 3,200 0 3,200

Adaptive Management 500 0 500

Rearing*** 5,242 4,066 1,176

Total: 8,942 4,066 4,876

* Originally was 9,200 and as of 2008 it is 8,942

**Values as of 11/30/11

*** This is not an official account and is what remains after subtracting the
other two accounts.

Reporting:

The final 2009 Annual Monitoring Report should be completed and delivered to NMFS soon.
Progress was made on the 2010 and 2011 Annual Monitoring Report that will be ready for review
soon. Staff submitted to NMFS a summary of take from our trapping program since 2001 with the
objective of facilitating a needed discussion with NMFS regarding the Incidental Take Statement
within the Cachuma Project Biological Opinion. Staff hopes to hold that meeting with NMFS within
the next four weeks to give us guidance on how to carry out this year's migrant trapping effort.

Outreach and Training:

The Cachuma Project Biology Staff continued to meet with landowners on Quiota Creek in
preparation for constructing fish passage projects this fall and next year.

Consultant Activity Summary (November):

Melinda Fournier Tree Specialist (Melinda Fournier) — Cachuma Lake Oak Tree Restoration
Program: monthly field maintenance and nursery operations.

HDR Fisheries Design Center (Mike Garello) — Design work for Quiota Creek Crossings in
preparation for project permitting, regulatory review and grant proposals.

Stetson Engineers (Ali Shahroody) — Santa Ynez River hydrological analyses.

Cardno ENTRIX (Jean Baldrige) — BO compliance tasks and support.




UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
U.S. BUREAU OF RECLAMATION-CACHUMA PROJECT-CALIFORNIA

DECEMBER 2011 LAKE CACHUMA DAILY OPERATIONS RUN DATE: December 13, 2011
DAY ELEV STORAGE ~ COMPUTED* CCWA PRECIP ON ———— RELEASE - AF, ———— EVAP  PRECIP
ACRE-FEET INFLOW INFLOW RES. SURF. HILTON AF. INCH INCHES
IN LAKE CHANGE AF. AF, AF.  TUNNEL CREEK OUTLET SPILLWAY
74614 175472
1 746.09 175,329 143 75.5 5.1 0 37.2 1.9 0 0 235 150 .00
2 74608 175,301 -28 426 0.0 0 411 1.3 0 0 182 .16 .00
3 74604 175,186 115 42.2 0.0 0 473 12.0 0 0 135 .08 .00
4 74603 175158 -28 414 0.0 0 421 12.1 0 0 152 097 .00
5 74599 175,044 114 A47.0 0.0 0 39.0 11.1 0 0 169 108 .00
6 74597 174,987 57 25.9 0.0 0 58.9 13.0 0 0 110 070 .00
7 74594 174,902 -85 15 0.0 0 651 12.0 0 0 64 041 00
8 74591 174,817 -85 9.0 0.0 0 65.4 12.0 0 0 166 .106 .00
9 74586 174,675 -142 -63.5 0.0 0 632 12.0 0 0 33 021 .00
10 74584 174,618 57 38.1 0.0 0 725 12.0 0 0 106 .068 .00
11 74581 174,533 -85 195 0.0 0 81.1 12.0 0 0 114 073 .00
12 74579 174,477 -56 8.2 0.0 33.2 65.7 12.0 0 0 33 021 .14
13 74578 174,448 29 3.9 0.0 28.4 38.8 11.9 0 0 28 018 .12
TOTAL (AF) 1,024 -65.3 5.4 61.6 7174 1553 0 0 1527 975 .26
(AVG) 174,883

COMMENTS:

* COMPUTED INFLOW IS THE SUM OF CHANGE IN STORAGE, RELEASES, AND EVAPORATION MINUS PRECIP ON THE RESERVOIR SURFACE AND CCWA
INFLOW.

DATA BASED ON 24-HOUR PERIOD ENDING 0800.
INDICATED OUTLETS RELEASE INCLUDE ANY LEAKAGE AROUND GATES.




.‘(\i Santa Barbara County Parks Department
'M Cachuma Lake Recreation Area

ania
COUNTY Summary of Aquatic Invasive Species Vessel Inspection Program

P ARKS and Early Detection Monitoring Program: November 2011

Boat Launch Tags: Boats with
Cachuma Lake Boat Launch
Tags attached to boat and
trailer. These boats have not
been removed from trailer

Santa Barbara County Parks -- Cachuma Lake
Boat Launch Data -- November 2011

Inspection Data

Total Vessels entering Park 546 since last visit to lake and are
Total Vessels launched 544 not subject to inspection or
Total Vessels Quarantined 21 0% decontamination.

Returning with Boat Launch Tag 351 | 65% No mussel species have been
located on any vessel

Arriving new: Inspected, washed 90 | 17% entering Cachuma Lake as of
Kayak/Canoe: Inspected 100 | 18% November 30, 2011,

Paddle Board: Inspected 3

4-stroke engines 174 | 32%

2-strokes, w/CARB star ratings 104 | 19%

2-strokes, NO emissions ratings 163 | 30%

Quarantine Data

Total Vessels Quarantined 2
Quarantined 7 days 0
Quarantined 14 days 2

Quarantine Reasons -- May be several for 1 boat

Water on vessel 0
Debris on hull 0
Plug installed 0
From infected county 0
Ballast tanks 0
Boat longer than 24 feet 1
Out-of-state 1
Unspecified 0
Demographic Data
Quarantined from infected county 0
Quarantined from SB County 1

CACHUMA LAKE QUAGGA SURVEY:

Summary: No Dreissenid mussels were detected

Inspection site: Cachuma Lake Marina, Santa Barbara County, California

Inspection Date and Time : 2011.11.16; 1000- 1330 PDT

Method: 14 PVC/Cement/Plastic Mesh Sampling Stations; 394 linear feet of line

Surveyors: Liz Gaspar (SB County Parks), Heather Lahr (Sea Grant); Ben Miller & Kylan Tyny,
Dunn Middle School Interns

Lake Elevation: 746.36 from maximum of 753 feet

Prepared by Liz Gaspar, based on inspections and data collected by Cachuma Lake Staff and Park Hosts, and Sea Grant staff and interns
G:\PARKS-OPERATIONS\WMID COUNTY\CACHUMA\QUAGGA MUSSELS\Quagga Inspectlons\Inspectlon
Summaries\Inspection Summaries\ANS Inspection&Survey Summ 2011.11.16.doc 5= :




Zebra/Quagga Surface Survey Data
(Use Pencil Only)

Cachuma Lake Reservoir
Waterbody Date 1_1__ / 16__ l_l_
Location 2225 Hwy 154, Santa Barbara County, SB County Par crew | L.Gaspar, HLahr, BMillar, KTyhy
GPS 34.578333/119.956389 {Decimal Degrees, WSG 84)
Secchi Wave | n o

Vaniouls

Depth Chop

# Linear Feet of:

Boat Ramp Bottom F‘ Shoreline 5
(100ft at marina, 200ft at ramp only) (100ft at marina, 200ft at ramp only)
Dock (200 ft) X Concrete Structures (100 ft) X
Mooring Line (200 ft) X Logs/Woody Debris (100 ft) x
See notes
Anchor/Dock Cabile (100 ft) 394 Other

% of Dock/Marina/Boat Ramp Searched N &

Zebra/Quagga Mussels Present? Y /N Specimens Collected? Y /N
E.x_act GPS Location . Mussel Density (# of mussels): M ethod )
(if isolated occurrences): (circle one):
Ruler / Petri
Ruler Length (if < 12 inches)
Substrate Type
Ruler / Petri
Ruler Length (if < 12 inches)
Substrate Type
Ruler / Petri

Ruler Length (if < 12 inches)

Substrate Type

Corbicula Clams Present? Y/N NO Snails Present? Y/N YES

Other Mussel/Clam Species Present? Y /N NO Specimens Collected? Y/N po




Quagga Mussel Zebra Mussel Asian Clam
Dreissena rostriformis bugensis Dreissena polymorpha Corbicula fluminea

» Shell: D-shaped and triangular; thin, fragile; * Shell: D-shaped and triangular; thin, fragile; » Shell: fan-shaped and symmetrical; thick,
smooth or shallowly ridged; solid light to dark smooth or shallowly ridged; solid light to dark hard; deep ridges; solid light to dark brown;
brown or dark concentric rings; paler near hinge brown or striped may have a white patch near hinge
« Attaches to hard and soft surfaces = Attaches to hard surfaces  Burrows into sand or mud; never attaches to
‘ Ridge structures
No ridge = » Dead shells often found along shoreline

Byssal Bilaterally symmetrical;
groove join together in a midventral line

Byssal Asymmetrical;
groove curved midventral line;
shells do not join together tightly

Map of sampling location:

Place empty circles (O ) in areas that were surveyed but no mussels were found. Place circles with pius sign ( EB ) where
mussels were found, and number 1, 2, or 3 to correspond to GPS coordinates.

Please see attached docs: Quagga Survey Stations 2011.11.16 & Quagga Survey Map 2011

Did weather conditions negatively affect sampling conditions? Y /N

Comments Inspected in Cachuma Lake marina: 14 sampling stations @ 12 or .5 meters, and 120 meters of rope.

See attached files of sampling station details and locations as noted above. ) ) T




:( g SANTA BARBARA COUNTY PARKS DEPARTMENT

M‘h—» 610 Mission Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105-2911
COI!NT‘! (805) 568-2461 « FAX (805) 568-2459
1 PARKS www.sbparks.org

Cachuma Lake Marina Monthly Quagga Survey Map:
Sampling stations and lines, docks, boat ramp, boathouse, logs

Fourteen survey station locations, as of May 2010

=4 meter long HORIZONTAL =12 meter VERTICAL survey line
survey line with PVC plates and with PVC plates & Tuffies @ 6 m,
Tuffies @ .5 m depth and cement block @ 12 m depth




spegl Ll L LoZ suonels Aesaung ebBenp ewunysen\suoneis
Aemng\Y1va ANV ANY AFANNS YNIXYsAsang ebbend euuepy ewnyoeisuonoedsul eBBENT\STASSNIN YOOVNOWINAHOVOIALNNOD QIN\SNOILYHIdO-SHHVYA\'D -3
ueozolig MHO1g ‘puo 1s9M ‘apIs
ueozollg :S3A1VY1d yos ojeid || 3N uo ueyp o}
f ¢ . . ‘Agni 1§ psyoepe ‘pus
. abpiw :mON.obg mmm_x.\ 3NN ”mEm_:.mth 129 Souowy| S wox B0 W)
9 gl oN 0 ‘se|dwieg "paxyoayd Yoo|q ‘sjes ojejd ‘seyn] ‘sjouy ‘suil| wge we | wz | zz qeomsp]  ‘wioogBojN|  § uoneis
ueozolig 0074 olppif
podiydwe ‘sefjy 8311V 1d tos Mwma ! 1e ujeuo o)
‘ . . ‘Ayny 1| psyoene ‘pus
. . :moN_obn mmmi =1\ “wEm_E,mm_O 429 Jououy| S wos Boj ey
g ulg ON 0 sojdweg payoays Moo|q ‘sies ajed Saiinj 'sijouy SulY| wee wg wyel G2l JEDILBA ‘woogbo} N| & Uolelg
ueozoAiq ‘sebie ‘podiydwy 'SV 1d Jes &am_u } ‘wiogeyd
¢ . . ‘Aygny | [Jepun ‘souenus
ueozohiqg mmm_/.w =\l Mm_.:w_..h.m_mro 429 oy w1y & wioged
yuig| oN 0 :sejdweg "paxoayd sjes ajeid ‘seyn| ‘sjouy ‘sur]| wgie | wg wg | .gzi | :ewozuon woogbo | ¥ uonels
ueozohlg M09
ueozoliq ‘poediydwy:S31v1d | awmm JBLLIOD J5oM
‘ . . sjeld ‘Ayn| | yyou ‘souenus
cmON.obn_ mmm_/.x =NN ”me_E.mth 129 “oupuy e wioned
g uis| oN 0 ‘se|dwieg "pax28yo 300|q ‘sies ajejd ‘saiyny ‘sjouy ‘our| wsye | we | wz | sz ‘[EOILBA woogbo| £ uonels
ueozohig MDO19
podiydwy :S31v1d
ueozoAlq :3N|T swsiuebio seled|  “Jeuioo jses
0€ ',0Z "0} e s19660] £ wouj eyep Jybi/dws) peojumod LON IA| g o] e
Z uls| ON 0 :s9jdweg "paxoayd ¥00|q ‘sjes ajejd ‘sayn | ‘sjouy ‘surf| weie | wo | wz | 0e JeonIBA woogbo| g uonels
jleus ejjesAyd ‘ueozohiq ‘podiydily :SI31V1d los ﬁewa
. . . L ‘Aymy
ueozohiq uon_:aEw. 3N “mEm_c.mm_O 489 R E—
L uis| oN 0 'sejduwies "paxosyd sjes sjeyd ‘sayny ‘sjouy ‘ourl| wye | we | we 8 | 1euozuon| ye ‘esnoyieog| 1 uoners
HUOW g oy ¢
s1u3 pabueys jou alem eiep 1B pue sameleduwe) Buipioosl s16BB0] viec]| @ 16eq | sieew | sictem
‘syjuow dwe] ydeq \pdsg | sivjom
& . g pded | Jes 8y sul yydeq uogduosag
# WSHessnyy Jojulm uj 8dpjoead pJepuels aq |jIm YoIym ‘pejos|jod Jou siem soiynt iSTLON| wooes |eradgnt fuoyouy| eyen | edALws juoneso| # uonels

AuA ) uejAy| 9 19||ijN UBE SuIBIU] [00YDS B|PPIN UUNQ JUBIS ESS

IYeT JayjeaH ‘syied Ajunog gs ‘tedses) zi si0Asaing

geovl 198} £6/ XBW WOl UoNEeAs|] aye]
00€L - 000l :@wi] uogoadsuj
Si'Liioe :8je(y uonoadsuj

sjiejaq uone}s bBulduweg :Asaing ebben Ajyjuop eulieyy oxe] ewnyosen



SX'9L L1 L0Z suonelg Aeaing ebbenp) ewnyoeo\suone —)
Aonins\v1va IMYT ANV AIAHNS YNIMYINsAoang eBBenp euueyy ewnyoeo\suoioadsu] e66enD\STISSNIN VOOVNDWINNHOVOALNNOD D_E,wzo_._.‘qmmmo-umuxm,\n“:ww

jleus elj@sAud ‘ebpiw ‘podiydwy :$31v1d 1es ojeyd |
ueozofuq ‘eebly :INIT ‘Swsiuebio| o .m%_u_ww ol 3 3p0
yL Ws| ON 0 :se|dweg "paxosyo sjes ajed ‘salyny ‘sjou ‘Bur| wze | wg | wz | o1 |iewozuop| youne s:om 71 uopeyst-
jleus gjesAyd ‘podiydwe ‘sefly :s31vid 108 ojeid |
ueozoAiq ‘eebly :INIT swsiuebio 429 .mu_wssuw pUio 3 300
£l uig] ON 0 :sojdweg "paxosyo sjes sjejd ‘'sayn] ‘sjou ‘Bull] wig | we | wg | 01 |yewozuon ﬁcsmw m_tom £ uonelg
uuojpeid dwnd
Buipass jue|d onenbe ‘abpiw ‘ueozoAiq ‘podiydwiy :831Vv1d Jsajpde sef Jopun
Buijpass jueid anenbe ‘ueozAolq ‘podiydury :INIT Swsiuebio] g ,Ksme %_mcomm_u
. . ¢ ‘ ; aul W ungs pus
ZL uig| oN 0 :so|dweg "paxydsyo s}os aeld ‘sayin] ‘sjouy Qul| wegz wg wg JE |iqewozuoH|  Modood end| Zi uonels
podiydwy 3007
podiydwy :S31v1d 1os sjed |
ueozoig NI swsiuebio Aunl i
. . . - : o 4€9 ‘oyouy pus 3.8} ®
1L wgl oN 0 :sejdwes "pax0ayd 300|q ‘s)os sjeld ‘sayyn] ‘sjouy ‘Bul| wege | wo | wz | o JEDILOA ¥90Q jen4| 11 uones
W30 ‘ebpiw ‘ueozollq ‘podiydwy :S31v1d esajed )
ueozoAiq ‘podiydwe ‘sebly gNIT swsiuebip 169 _méa b d ud
. . . . . U Wiyl L diis ‘pus
0L uisj oN 0 :so|dweg "payoayo sjes ajeld ‘ssiyn| ‘sjouy ‘aury| we weg | wg £v | 1equozuoH| 1e %o0p aippin| 01 Uonels
abpiw ‘podiydwy 30074
podiydwy :$31v1d 1es sied |
ueozoAig ‘NI SWSIUEBIO| g nﬁﬁ oo
. . t i t I Ui W
6 Ws| ON 0_:ssjdwes ‘paxoay %00jq ‘'sjes sjeyd ‘sayn ‘sjouy| 'our| wee | wo | waz eonsA| 1e yoop aippIn| 6 uonels
jleus ejjesAud ‘ueozoluq ‘podiydwy €31V 1d jes ajeid |
. . . Ry g zuo
ueozoAiq ‘sebly INIT iswsiuebio] g oupwyl dis @guu_cﬂ

8 US| ON 0 _:so|dweg "paxoayo sjes sjeyd ‘sayyn ‘sjouy ‘oulf| wye | we | we £y | imwozuon| 1exoop Niey| g uonels

ebuods M001d| dze
podiydwe ‘eebly :931v1d| we?Z

(N3 0) ssew Bba A|jaf snbedo ‘ueozoAlq ‘aebly :INIT :swsuebio Jes ojeid | aloys
0€ 02 01 1e s19660] ¢ woy ejep Jubiy/dws) peojumod LON aid L) o dis il
Lus] on 0 :sajdwies "paxosyo %o0jq 'sias ajeid ‘salyn | ‘sjouy ‘aurT wo | wzr | uy | weomen|aewonnoed| zuones
siojol ¢

® 4 Beq | susloiy | siojem
s dusol pdea | wdeq | suolem
'gipdeg | jes ey suj tpdeg uonduosaq

u a
# UISjiessniy *SHLON] wooeg |ejAyny [ypoyouy| ey | sdAL uig juogedo| # uonEls




N




2012 MID PACIFIC REGION WATER USERS CONFERENCE
SCHEDULE AT A GLANCE

WEDNESDAY, JAN. 25

7:30am-6:00pm REGISTRATION
8:00am CONTINENTAL BREAKFAST
8:30am-12:00pm CALL TO ORDER and GENERAL SESSION

Welcome Address  Chris Dahlsirom, WUC Planning Commiitee Chair
Bureau of Reclamation Regional Director Address Don Glaser, Bureau of Reclamation
BR Area Managers’ Roundtable Panel Discussion

12:15pm-1:30pm LUNCHEON
Special Guest Commissioner Michael Connor, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (invited)

MP Regional Directors Water Conservation Award  Presented by Don Glaser, Bureai of Reclamation

1:45pm-3:00pm GENERAL SESSION
Keynote Address U.S. District Court Judge Oliver W. Wanger (Ret.)

5:30pm-7:30pm EXHIBITOR RECEPTION & SLOTS TOURNAMENT
Cocktails, Hors D ‘oewnvres, Visits with Exhibitors and our Famous Slots Towrnament!

THURSDAY, JAN. 26

8:00am-9:10am BREAKFAST
Congressional/Washington Report Dan Keppen, Familv Farm Alliance

F. Gordon Johnston Award

9:20am-12:15pm GENERAL SESSION
Trading Off: The Social, Political and Ecological Effects of Dam Removal Panel Discussion

Delta Issues/Federal District Circuit Court Decisions Panel Discussion

12:30pm-1:30pm LUNCHEON
Newlands Project Report Rusty Jardina, Truckee-Carson Irrigation District

Cachuma Report Chris Dalilstrom, Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District 1D #1

1:45pm-3:00pm GENERAL SESSION
Klamath Report Greg Addingion, Klamath Water Users Association

Special Guest John Tubbs, Deputy Assistant Secretary for Water & Science, U.S. Department of Interior (invited)
6:00pm-9:00pm “Wii WANT YOU” AT THE BUBINGA LOUNGE
Dinner, Cocktails, Live Entertainment, and a Wii Games Tournament you'll never forget, all in the ultra chic

BuBinga Lounge at the Eldorado. See next page for info.

FRIDAY, JAN. 27

8:30am-11:30am BREAKFAST
Communicating with People: Talking, Texting and Tweeting Panel led by Mike Wade, California Farm Water Coalition

2011 Water Supply Outlook  Paul Fujitani, Bureau of Reclamation

Closing Comments and Cash Raffle Chris Dahistrom, WUC Planning Committee Chair




The Mid-Pacific Region Water Users Conference is an annual conference attended by Managers, Directors,
O&M Personnel, Consultants, and Government Agency Representatives from districts served by the United
States Bureau of Reclamation facilities in California, Nevada, and Oregon.

KEYNOTE SPEAKER:
JUDGE OLIVER W. WANGER (ret.)

We are honored to have newly retired U.S. District Court Judge Oliver Wanger as the
2012 Kevnote Speaker at the conference. Retired from the bench on September 30,
Wanger is now a member of Wanger Jones Helsley PC in Fresno. As a judge, Wanger
heard and ruled on some of the most complex and high profile cases in California
involving water and environmental issues. Judge Wanger will share his unique first
hand perspective on California water law, politics and regulations.

OPTIONAL ACTIVITIES
USBR PRIVATE MEETINGS

The U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Management Team and Water Conservation Staff will be available for
private meetings during the conference. To arrange meetings in advance, please contact the following:

« U.S.B.R. Management: contact Francia Morales at (916)978-5000 or fmorales@usbr.ogv
e U.S.B.R. Water Conservation: contact Melissa Crandell at (916)978-5208 or mcrandell@usbr.cov

THURSDAY NIGHT: Wii WANT YOU!

Join us, wii dare ya, as we iake over the ultra chic BuBinga Lounge in the Eldorado for an evening of
Jood, drink, live entertainment and Wii sports.

Never played Wii? 1t’s easy to learn and the Wii puts you and Mii in the game! Try your hand at
several game stations like bowling, golf and baseball. Not a gamer? That's OK, every sporting
tournament needs a gallery — Wiit-ness the thrill of victory and the agony of defeat as you enjoy great
Jood, hosted cocktails and outstanding live entertainment.

At the end of the evening, someone will be singing “Wii Are The Champions!™ as three lucky Wii-ners
will take home their very own Wii game system. Will Wii see you there? Wii hope so!

SLOTS TOURNAMENT
Feeling lucky?? Back by popular demand, 11y your hand at our exclusive slots tournament during the
Exhibitors Reception on Wednesday evening. Play as often as you like or just watch the excitement
Jrom the sidelines. $20 cash buy-in per person per play pavable at the tournament. All cash taken in
will be paid out! Pre-registration is not required.

HOTEL INFORMATION & RESERVATIONS

The 2012 Mid Pacific Region Water Users Conference will be held at the Eldorado Hotel & Casino in Reno,
Nevada. The special room rate is $59.99 per night plus applicable taxes. Make reservations directly with the
hotel by calling (800)648-5966. Please mention the Water Users Conference and/or group code JH2012 to
ensure the group rate. MAKE YOUR RESERVATIONS EARLY!!!!! THE DEADLINE FOR HOTEL
RESERVATIONS AT THE SPECIAL RATE IS JANUARY 6, 2012 OR UNTIL OUR ROOM BLOCK IS
FILLED. Afier the January 6th deadline, rooms will likely NOT be available and/or may be at a higher rate.

i
g

“svné?




CONFERENCE DEADLINES

e The Eldorado Hotel room reservation deadline is January 6, 2012 or until our block fills. MAKE
YOUR RESERVATIONS EARLY!

e  Conference pre-registration deadline is January 13, 2012.

CANCELLATIONS

e Conference registrations cancelled by January 13, 2012, will be refunded in full. There will be no
refunds for registrations cancelled after January 13.

e LEldorado Hotel room reservation cancellations must be made directly with the hotel and received
prior to 24 hours of your scheduled arrival to avoid a cancellation penalty.

EXHIBITOR INFORMATION

The Exhibitor Reception will be held Wednesday evening, January 25. For details, please refer to the
enclosed Exhibitor Information and Application. If you have questions, please call us at 916/448-1638
or email JTownsendicefu. org.

SPONSORSHIP INFORMATION

A limited number of sponsorship opportunities are available. Please refer to the enclosed sponsorship
opportunities menu.

QUESTIONS

Please contact us by mail at Mid Pacific Region Water Users Conference, 1521 I Street, Sacramento,
CA 95814, by email (JTownsend(@egfa.org), by phone at (916)448-1638, or by fax at (916)446-1063.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

Chair: Chris Dahlstrom, Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District ID #1
Larry Bauman, CVP Water Association

Jeff Bryant, Firebaugh Canal Water District

Richard Harriman, Truckee Carson Irrigation District

Lynn Hurley, Santa Clara Valley Water District

Dan Keppen, Family Farm Alliance

Bill Luce, Friant Water Authority

Cynthia Peterson, Dunnigan Water District

Richard Stevenson, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation

Jane Townsend, MPR WUC Meering Coordinator

COVER PHOTOGRAPH

Sincere thanks to Mr. Steven James of Massachusetts for allowing us to use his photograph on our cover —

Fresh Snow In The Sierras. To see more of Mr. James’ photos, visit hitp.://www. panoramio.coml@xds@z;/,g 143674. } }




Memorandum

TO: COMB Board of Directors
FROM: Bruce Mowry

General Manager
SUBJECT:

Information Deadline

COMB Regular Board Meeting Dates/Board Packet

The following are the scheduled Board meeting dates for calendar year 2012:

January 23 40 Monday Monday, January 16
February 27 4h Monday Monday, February 20
March 26 40 Monday Monday, March 19
April 23 4 Monday Monday, April 16
May 21 3 Monday* Monday, May 14
June 25 4 Monday Monday, June 18
July 23 4 Monday Monday, July 16
August 27 4t Monday Monday, August 20
September 24 48 Monday Monday, September 17
October 22 4™ Monday Monday, October 15
November 19 37 Monday* Monday, November 12
Decemberl7 3 Monday* Monday, December 10

*May meeting is on the 3™ Monday,
*November meeting is on the 3

due to the Memorial Day Holiday
Monday, due to the Thanksgiving Holiday

* December meeting is on the 3 Monday, due to the Christmas Holidc;g%%

R:ARS_Admin Sec\BOARD PACKET & INFO JT\Board mtg dates\2012 board mtg dates .doc




CACHUMA OPERATION
AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011 and 2010

" ffi % BARTLETT. PRINGLE & WOLF, LLP

2 BP\XZ S CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

Tinep 1o

IS




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Independent Auditors’ REPOIt .....cc.eeciiiiiiiiiiiii e s 1-2
Management’s Discussion and ANalysis .....c.ccovereeviiiiiiiiiiniiin s 3-9
Statement OFf NEt ASSELS ....ccviririiiiiie et 10-11
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net ASSEts .....oocoovviviiiiniiiniieneiiincee 12
Statement of Cash FIOWS ..ooooviiiiiiiiiic e 13-14
Notes to the Financial Statements........ccoovvviiviiiiiiiniii e 15-30

Supplemental Information:

Supplemental Schedule of Operation and Maintenance, General and
Administrative and Other Maintenance EXPense ........ccccoovvvevveeninniinineninninn, 31-32




December 8, 2011

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of Cachuma Operation and
Maintenance Board (“COMB”) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 and the related statements
of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of COMB’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for
California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of COMB at June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as well as accounting
systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing
special districts.

Management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 9 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. This supplementary information is the
responsibility of COMB’s management. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not
audit such information and we do not express an opinion on it.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial

statements taken as a whole. The additional information included in the supplemental
schedule on page 31 - 32 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a

-1-




required part of the basic financial statements. This additional information is the
responsibility of COMB’s management. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

This section presents management’s analysis of the financial condition and activities of the Cachuma
Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This
information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the additional
information included herewith.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMB operates as a proprietary fund-type. All proprietary fund-types are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets and where
appropriate, total net assets (i.e., fund equity) are segregated into invested in capital and unrestricted
net assets. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net assets.

All proprietary fund-types utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are

recognized when earned, regardless of when received, and expenses are recognized at the time the
related liabilities are incurred, regardless of when paid.

Summaryv of Organization and Business

COMB is a public entity duly organized and existing in accordance with enabling legislation of the
State of California: Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1, of the Government Code (Section 6500 et seq.),
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act. COMB was officially established as a joint powers agency as of
January 1, 1957 by and among six public agencies (Member Units) in Santa Barbara County, two of
which have subsequently reorganized (merged). On May 23, 1996 the Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement (Agreement) for COMB was amended and restated. The Member Units entered into the
Agreement to exercise their common power to provide for the rights to, the facilities of, and the
operation, maintenance and use of the United States, Department of the Interior, Bureau of
Reclamation project known as the Cachuma Project, including storage, treatment, transport and
appurtenant facilities, and all necessary tangible and intangible property and rights. In particular, the
Member Units expressed their desire to create COMB for the purpose of providing authority for the
financing of “costs” for the capture, development, treatment, storage, transport and delivery of
water; and for repayment of notes, bonds, loans, warrants, and revenue bonds as may be issued to
finance facilities, operations or services. In September 2010, the Cachuma Operation and
Maintenance Board approved a budget adjustment effective January 2011 to transfer from CCRB the
implementation of the Santa Ynez River Fisheries Program as required by the 2000 Biological
Opinion.

.




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Summary of Organization and Business (Continued)

COMB currently has a staff of 14 full time employees. Of these, four are employed in an
administrative capacity and ten are in field operations.

COMB is presently composed of five Member Units, all of which are public agencies: the
Carpinteria Valley Water District, the Goleta Water District, the Montecito Water District, the Santa
Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement District No. 1, and the City of Santa Barbara.
(A founding Member Unit of COMB, the Summerland Water District, reorganized with the
Montecito Water District, with Montecito Water District as the successor agency. Another founding
Member Unit of COMB, the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, assigned its Member
Unit water contract to the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.

1)

Under the Agreement, each of the five Member Units appoints a representative to the COMB Board
of Directors. The following table shows each Member Unit’s share of the Cachuma Project yield
(water entitlement) and the number of votes each has on the Board of Directors:

Member Unit Entitlement Percentage Board Representation
Carpinteria Valley WD 10.94 % 1 vote
Goleta Water District 36.25 % 2 votes
Montecito Water District 10.31 % 1 vote
Santa Ynez RWCD ID No. 1 10.31 % I vote
City of Santa Barbara 32.19 % 2 votes
Total 100.00% 7 votes

Votes representing a majority of the number of votes authorized under the Agreement are required
for the approval of any decision, other than adjournment, which requires action of the Board of
Directors. Also, the affirmative vote of at least three representatives to the Board of Directors is
necessary for the approval of such a decision. The unanimous consent of the representatives of all
the Member Units is required for COMB to take action on the following matters:

Approval of a Cachuma Project Master Contract amendment, renewal or extension;

A matter involving water rights of any party;

Acquisition of significant facilities from the United States;

Issuance of bonds, loans or other forms of indebtedness in excess of one million
($1,000,000) dollars.

Ll e

A decision of COMB authorizing a capital expenditure in excess of one million dollars or incurring
an indebtedness or obligation in excess of one million dollars is not effective unless it has been
ratified by a resolution approved by all of the Member Units.




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operating Assessments

Current operations of COMB are funded by assessment of the Member Units, with the assessments
based on the Member Units’ Cachuma Project entitlement percentages. In September 2010, the
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board approved a budget adjustment effective January 2011 to
transfer from CCRB the implementation of the Santa Ynez River Fisheries Program as required by
the 2000 Biological Opinion. All five Member Units fund the general and administrative portion of
the annual budget as well as the cost of special projects (capital improvements, rehabilitation &
betterment, maintenance & modifications, etc.) for Bradbury Dam and Lake Cachuma, the main
Cachuma Project storage facility, located on the Santa Ynez River in northern Santa Barbara
County. All five Member Units also fund the Santa Ynez River Fisheries Program and related
activities.

Four of the Member Units, not including Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District,
Improvement District No. 1, fund the operation and maintenance portion of the annual budget as
well as the cost of special projects for other Cachuma Project storage and conveyance facilities that
serve the South Coast of Santa Barbara County. These facilities include the Tecolote Tunnel, the
South Coast Conduit (SCC), and four dams and reservoirs (Glen Anne, Laura, Ortega and
Carpinteria). During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, COMB conducted and/or completed a
number of special studies and projects using revenue provided by these assessments. These included
SCC improvement plans and life expectancy studies; and rehabilitation and betterment of control
stations, valves and structures.

COMB Commaittees

COMB has four committees: the Administrative Committee (financial, personnel and legal matters),
the Operations Division Committee, the Fisheries Division Committee, and the Public Outreach
Committee. Each committee is composed of two Board members and one alternate Board member.
Appointments to the committees are made by the President of the Board. The committees meet with
staff on an as-needed basis and review and recommend actions to the Board of Directors with regard
to capital improvements, finance and other matters.




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following table shows a condensed version of COMB’s statement of net assets with
corresponding analysis regarding significant variations. This statement includes the assets and
liabilities related to the transfer of fisheries activities into COMB effective January 2011.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

Year Ended Variance
June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010 Dollars Percent

Current Assets $ 606,986 $ 1,114,829 $ (507,843) -45.6%
Restricted Assets 129,171 124,448 4,723 3.8%
Property, Plant & Equipment 234,542 222,012 12,530 5.6%
Other Assets 6,549,770 6,588,918 (39,148) -0.6%
Total Assets $ 7,520,469 $ 8,050,207 $  (529,738) -6.6%
Current Liabilities $ 640,326 $ 829,612 $ (189,286) -22.8%
Long-Term Liabilities 6,739,338 6,685,031 54,307 0.8%
Total Liabilities 7,379,664 7,514,643 (134,979) -1.8%
Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets 234,542 222,012 12,530 5.6%
Unrestricted (93,737) 313,552 (407,289) -129.9%
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 7,520,469 $ 8,050,207 $ (529,738) -6.6%

Statement of Net Assets Analvysis

Total assets as of June 30,2011 are 6.5% less than the June 30, 2010 amount. The changes are noted
below.

e Current assets are considerably less than the prior year attributable to a decreased amount of
cash in LAIF at year end due to the distribution of unexpended funds from the prior year in
the amount of $313,552 and recognizing deferred revenue of $171,000 related to the SCC
Improvement and Erosion Restoration projects.

e Restricted assets are essentially the same as the prior year.

e The value of property, plant and equipment is slightly more than the previous year amount
due to the absorption of the fisheries division assets and associated accumulated depreciation
during the second half of the fiscal year.




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Assets Analysis (Continued)

e Current liabilities are less than the prior year amount primarily due to a net decrease in
accrued vacation/sick liabilities associated with three employee retirements and transfer of
accrued vacation balances from CCRB associated fishery projects and a decrease in the
amount of deferred revenue balance at year end.

e Long term liabilities are, in general, about the same as the previous year due to an increase in
Other Post Retirement Benefit obligations as outlined in Note 11 and a decrease in SOD Act
repayment amounts as outlined in Note 6.

e Unrestricted net assets are considerably lower than the previous year due to the distribution
of unexpected funds from the prior year in the amount of $313,552 and a net loss for the year
end June 30, 2011.

The following table shows a condensed version of COMB’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets, with corresponding analysis regarding significant variances.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended Variance
June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010 Dollars Percent

Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Operating Revenues $ 2,776,114 $ 1,848,680 $ 927,434 50.2%
Operating Expenses,

excluding Depreciation Expense (2,666,332) (2,037,924) (628,408) 30.8%
Depreciation (89,659) (84,267) (5,392) 6.4%
Operating Income (Deficit) 20,123 (273,511) 293,634 -107.4%
Non-operating Revenues 18,065 6,608 11,457 173.4%
Non-operating Expenses (119,395) (210,597) 91,202 -43.3%
Change in Net Assets $ (81,207) § (477,500) $ 396,293 -83.0%

Statement Analvsis

e Operating revenues as of June 30, 2011 show a significant increase partially due to an
increased budget as compared to the prior year and partially due to the absorption of the
fisheries activities effective January 1, 2011.




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Statement Analysis (Continued)

e Operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization expense are about 29% greater
than the prior year amount due primarily to the absorption of the fisheries activities effective
January 1, 2011.

e Non-operating revenues were greater compared with the prior fiscal year primarily due to the
entries related to the absorption of the fisheries activities effective January 1, 2011.

e Non-operating expenses were considerably lower compared to the prior year primarily due to
the recording of accrued interest expense related to the SOD Act contract payable during the
prior fiscal year.

Capital Assets

The following table provides a summary of COMB’s capital assets and changes from the prior year.

Capital Assets
Year Ended Variance
June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010 Dollars Percent
Vehicles $ 412,962 $ 338,974 $ 73,988 21.8%
Office Furniture and Equipment 346,249 237,870 108,379 45.6%
Field Equipment 447,613 377,491 70,122 18.6%
Mobile Offices Used for Facilities 97,803 97,803 - 0.0%
Resurfacing 22,350 22,350 - 0.0%
Total Capital Assets 1,326,977 1,074,488 252,489 23.5%
Accumulated Depreciation (1,092,435) (852,476) (239,959) 28.1%
Net Capital Assets $ 234,542 $ 222,012 $ 12,530 5.6%

Debt Administration

COMB and the Cachuma Project Authority (CPA) merged in 1996, with COMB as the successor
agency. With this merger, COMB assumed responsibility for the oversight and payment of the Series
1993 CPA revenue bonds. However, the bonds are not recorded on the books of COMB because,
under Joint Participation Agreements between COMB and three of the Member Units, these Member
Units are obligated to make the bond principal and interest payments on behalf of COMB. The
Series 1993 bonds were refinanced by COMB in the first quarter of fiscal year 2004/05.

Under the terms and conditions of a repayment contract executed in 2002, COMB is responsible for
payment to the United States of fifteen percent (15%) of the total amount of Safety of Dams (SOD)




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Debt Administration (Continued)

Act funds expended by the United States for structural stability and related work at Bradbury Dam.
The debt total under the contract as executed is approximately $6,791,000 plus interest and is to be
repaid by annual payments over a 50-year period. COMB assesses the Member Units annually to
collect the revenue for the payment due that year, with the assessments based on the Member Units’
Cachuma Project entitlement percentages.

Work activities related to the completion of the Bradbury SOD Act rehabilitation produced
additional costs which increased the cost of the project by approximately $3.045 million as of June
30, 2011. Fifteen percent of that total equals approximately $456,831 which has been reflected in the
long term liability obligation.

The funds expended by Reclamation through June 30, 2011 regarding the Laura Dam rehabilitation
project as identified in the Re-Payment Schedule for this project approximate $5,974,937. The
fifteen percent obligation plus interest during construction equates to approximately $912,038 for
the Laura SOD Act repayment debt which appears in the long term liability account.

Work activities related to the completion of the Laura Dam SOD Act rehabilitation produced
additional costs which increased the cost of the project by $740,502 as of June 30, 2011. Fifteen
percent of that total equals approximately $111,076 which has been reflected in the long term
liability obligation.




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30,2011 and 2010

ASSETS
2011 2010
Current Assets
Cash (Note 3) $ 266,105 $ 363,220
Investments (Note 3) 54,786 580,089
Receivable from related entity (Note 12) 47,072 66,825
Receivable from member units 141,151 -
Interest Receivable 64 1,289
Prepaid insurance 12,861 15,422
Deposits 6,529 6,529
Current portion of SOD Act assessments receivable (Note 5) 78,418 81,455
Total current assets 606,986 1,114,829
Restricted Cash (Note 4) 129,171 124,448
Capital Assets (Note 7)
Vehicles 412,962 338,974
Office furniture and equipment 346,249 237,870
Field equipment 447,613 377,491
Mobile offices used for facilities 97,803 97,803
Resurfacing 22,350 22,350
Subtotal 1,326,977 1,074,488
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,092,435) (852,476)
Capital assets, net 234,542 222,012
Other Assets
Long-term assessments receivable SOD Act (Note 5) 6,549,770 6,588,918
Total other assets 6,549,770 6,588,918
Total assets $ 7,520,469 $ 8,050,207

See accompanying notes
- 10 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011 and 2010

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2011 2010
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 294,487 $ 260,898
Accrued vacation and sick leave benefits 51,242 104,583
Payable to related entity (Note 4) 129,171 124,448
Accrued interest 87,008 87,008
Deferred revenue - 171,220
Current portion of SOD Act contract payable (Note 5) 78,418 81,455
Total current liabilities 640,326 829,612
Long-Term Liabilities
Net Other Post Employement Benefit obligation 189,568 96,113
SOD Act contract payable, net of current portion (Note 5) 6,549,770 6,588,918
Total long-term liabilities 6,739,338 6,685,031
Total liabilities $ 7,379,664 $ 7,514,643
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 14)
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 234,542 $ 222,012
Unrestricted:
Accumulated deficit (93,737)
Designated to be constructively returned - 313,552
Total net assets $ 140,805 $ 535,564

See accompanying notes
-11-




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Operating Revenues
Operating assessments from member agencies $ 2,695,309 $ 1,839,866
Warren Act Fund 7,231 -
Cachuma Project Betterment Fund 73,000 -
Other revenues 574 8,814
Total operating revenues 2,776,114 1,848,680
Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance division:
Operation and maintenance 979,055 794,084
General and administrative 708,353 683,490
Other maintenance 442,122 476,097
Fisheries division:
Operation and maintenance 236,580 -
General and administrative 72,826 -
Fishery related projects 180,439 -
Jesusita Fire damage, net of insurance proceeds
of $312,035 in 2010 46,957 84,253
Depreciation 89,659 84,267
Total operating expenses 2,755,991 2,122,191
Net Operating Gain (Loss) 20,123 (273,511)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 1,649 6,608
Gain related to transfer from related entity (Note 13) 16,416 -
Interest expense (119,395) (210,597)
Total non-operating expenses (101,330) (203,989)
Change in Net Assets (81,207) (471,500)
Total Net Assets, Beginning of Year 535,564 1,013,064
Amount constructively returned to members (313,552) -
Total Net Assets, End of Year $ 140,805 $ 535,564

See accompanying notes
-12-




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30,2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from member agencies $ 1,889,019 $ 2,080,491
Cash received from other sources 574 8,814
Cash received for insurance reimbursement - 312,035
Cash received from related entity 253,701 -
Cash payments to suppliers for operations (1,376,698) (1,627,039)
Cash payments to employees (1,140,294) (609,153)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (373,698) 165,148
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in restricted assets 4,723 (65,050)
(Increase) decrease in deposits held for related entity (4,723) 65,050
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities - -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets (57,979) (29,010)
Interest payments on SOD Act contract payable (119,395) (115,503)
Principle payments on SOD Act contract payable (74,220) (77,491)
Net cash flows used by capital and related financing activities (251,594) (222,004)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest received 2,874 7,635
Purchase of investments (452,697) (1,702,414)
Proceeds from redemptions of investments 978,000 1,552,000
Net cash flows provided (used) by investing activities 528,177 (142,779)
Net decrease in Cash (97,115) (199,635)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 363,220 562,855
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 266,105 $ 363,220

See accompanying notes
-13-




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010

Reconciliation of net operating loss to net cash provided
by operating activities
Net operating gain (loss) § 20,123 $ (273,511)
Adjustments to reconcile net operating gain (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 89,659 84,267
Gain from transfer from related entity (16,416) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Receivable from related entity 19,753 (38,546)
Other receivables (141,151) -
Prepaid insurance 2,561 (1,965)
Deposits - (2,623)
Current portion of SOD Act assessment receivable 74,220 69,405
Accounts payable 33,589 29,834
Accrued vacation and sick leave benefts (96,226) 30,954
Deferred revenue (171,220) 171,220
Amounts contructively returned to members (313,552) -
SOD Act liability 31,507 -
OPEB liability 93,455 96,113
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities § (373,698) 5 165,148

See accompanying notes
-14 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 -

Note 2 -

Organization

The Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) is a joint powers agency organized to
operate and maintain the water delivery system of the Cachuma Project located in Santa Barbara
County. COMB’s member agencies (Member Units) consist of five water purveyors as follows:
Carpinteria Valley Water District, City of Santa Barbara, Goleta Water District, Montecito Water
District, and Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District Improvement District No. 1.

The Member Units entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement to exercise their common
power to provide for the rights to, the facilities of, and the operation, maintenance and use of the
United States, Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation project known as the Cachuma
Project, including storage, treatment, transport and appurtenant facilities, and all necessary tangible
and intangible property rights. In September 2010, the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board
approved a budget adjustment effective January 2011 to transfer from CCRB the implementation
activities of the Santa Ynez River Fisheries Program as required by the 2000 Biological Opinion.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A) Basis of Accounting

COMB operates as a proprietary fund type. All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a
flow of economic resources measurement focus. Under this measurement focus, all assets and
liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included in the statement of net
assets. Where appropriate, net total assets are segregated into net assets invested in capital
assets and unrestricted net assets. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets.

All proprietary fund types utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized at the time the related liabilities are incurred regardless of when paid.

This report has been prepared in conformance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted
in the United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). Additionally, COMB applies all Financial Accounting Standards Board
statements and interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

COMB distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with COMB’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of COMB are assessments of
the Member Units and grant monies received. Operating expenses for COMB include
maintenance and administrative expenses, depreciation on capital assets and litigation costs.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses.

New Accounting Pronouncements

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, COMB implemented Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension.”

-15 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A)

B)

©)

D)

E)

F)

Basis of Accounting (Continued)

This Statement requires that COMB account for, and report, the annual cost of other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) and the outstanding obligations and commitments related to
OPEB in the same manner as it currently does for pensions. The Statement does not require
that COMB fund their OPEB plans, only that it accounts for them and reports them. OPEB
generally consists of health insurance and dental, vision, prescription, or other healthcare
benefits provided to eligible retirees, including their beneficiaries in some cases.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes demand deposits and money market
accounts, but does not include restricted cash or funds invested in the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF).

Capital Assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is generally 5 years. Title to the
assets of the Cachuma Project is with the United States of America; the assets are not recorded
as assets of COMB. Costs relating to capital improvements, rehabilitation, betterment,
maintenance and modifications are therefore reported as expenditures when incurred by
COMB.

Investments

Investments in governmental investment pools are reported at fair value based on the fair value
per share of the pool’s underlying portfolio.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Pay

Employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment.
With minor exceptions, compensated absences vest and accumulate and are accrued when they
are earned.

Unspent Operating Assessments

The operating assessments represent amounts received from COMB’s Member Units to fund
current operations. To the extent that revenues exceed expenses in a given year, they are
constructively returned to the Member Units in subsequent years.

-16 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

G) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. COMB’s principal areas that include
estimates are the liabilities and related receivables for Safety of Dams Act construction in
process and the lives of capitalized assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

B) Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of operating assessments collected from member units for use on
projects that have not been completed but have open task orders for the work to be completed.
Deferred revenue is recognized in the amount of the open task orders.

Note 3 - Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following:

2011 2010
Cash on hand $ 400 % 400
Deposits with financial institutions 394,876 487,268
Investments 54,786 580,089
Total cash and investments, at fair value $ 450,062  $ 1,067,757

Investments

Under the provisions of COMB’s investment policy, the agency may invest in state or national
banks, state or federal saving and loan associations, the State of California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF), or may invest as provided in the California Government Code.

In accordance with governmental accounting standards, investments are categorized by level of
credit risk assumed at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for
which the securities are held by COMB or its agency in COMB’s name. Category 2 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counter party’s trust
department or agent in COMB’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments
for which the securities are held by the counter party, by its trust department or agency but not in
COMB’s name. Currently, COMB’s investments are held within LAIF. This is a non-categorized
investment vehicle permitted under the provisions of COMB’s investment policy.

Short-term investments consist of deposits with the LAIF, a fund established by the State of
California to assist local agencies in the achievement of maximum earnings. The interest rate on the
LAIF deposit varies. For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the average earnings rate was
approximately 1%. The amounts on deposit as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 were $54,786 and
$580,089, respectively.

17-

/9



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 -

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Investment Risk

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether COMB was exposed to the
following investment risks at the year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will
not fulfill its obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are
designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, COMB was not significantly exposed
to credit risk.

At June 30, 2011, COMB’s investments, other than those which are obligations of or
guaranteed by the U.S. Government, are rated as to credit quality as follows:

Investment S&P Rating
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Not rated

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are uninsured and
uncollateralized. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, COMB will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be
able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investment
securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered
in the name of COMB and are held by either the counter-party or the counter-party’s trust
department or agent but not in COMB’s name.

All cash is entirely insured or collateralized. The California Government Code requires
California banks and savings and loans associations to secure COMB’s deposits by pledging
government securities, which equal at least 110% of COMB’s deposits. California law also
permits financial institutions to secure COMB's deposits by the pledging of first trust deed
mortgage notes in excess of 150% of the COMB's deposits. COMB may waive collateral
requirements for deposits that are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) to $250,000.

Concentration of Credit Risk — This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a
government’s investment in a single issuer. At year end, COMB was not exposed to
concentration of credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will

adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an
investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

As of June 30, 2011, COMB had the following investments:

Investment Type Amount Maturity
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 54,786 N/A

Foreign Currency Risk— This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. At year end, COMB was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

-18-




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4 -

Restricted Cash

The Cachuma Project Renewal Fund (Renewal Fund) and Cachuma Project Trust Fund (Trust
Fund) are two separate funds that have been established through contracts with the U.S. Bureau of
Reclamation (Reclamation).

The Trust Fund is a requirement of the Warren Act contract that the Central Coast Water Authority
(CCWA) negotiated with Reclamation for the use of the Cachuma Project for transport of State
Water Project (SWP) water through Cachuma Project facilities. The memorandum of understanding
(MOU) creating the Trust Fund established a two person Fund Committee and an Advisory
Committee. One member of the Fund Committee is appointed by the Member Units through COMB
or CCRB. The other member of the Fund Committee is appointed by Santa Barbara County Board
of Supervisors from the County Water Agency.

The Renewal Fund is a requirement of the Cachuma Project Renewal Master Contract for water
service from the Cachuma Project to the five Cachuma Project Member Units. The Cachuma
Project Renewal Master Contract is mostly silent on the process for managing the Renewal Fund,
other than stating that the Fund Committee must agree on its use.

Both the Trust Fund and the Renewal Fund require annual and five-year plans. Reclamation and the
Cachuma Project Member Units agreed to use the committee process for both funds and to have
common annual and five-year plans. To date, the annual and five-year plans have authorized the
combined funds to be used for implementation of the BO/FMP. Pursuant to the Renewal Master
Contract, COMB administers both the Trust Fund and the Renewal Fund accounts.

Summary of restricted cash as of June 30:

2011 2010
Trust Fund $ 119,136 $ 119,408
Renewal Fund 10,035 5,040
Total Restricted Cash 3 129,171  $ 124,448

-19-




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5 -

SOD Act Assessments Receivable and Contract Pavable

Bradbury Dam

On July 1, 2002, COMB executed a repayment contract with U.S. Bureau of Reclamation in the
Department of Interior of the United States (Reclamation). Under the terms of the agreement and in
accordance with the United States Safety of Dams (SOD) Act, COMB will reimburse Reclamation
for fifteen percent (15%) of the total amount of SOD Act funds expended by Reclamation to
preserve the structural integrity of Bradbury Dam and related Cachuma Project facilities.

COMB entered into a repayment contract with Reclamation when the project was deemed to be
substantially complete. The repayment contract, as executed, calls for a repayment of 15% of a total
cost of $45,276,008 or approximately $6,791,000 plus interest, as appropriate, over a 50-year
period. The repayment obligation has been allocated fifty-one and three tenths percent (51.3%) to
irrigation uses (Irrigation Allocation) or $3,483,989, and forty eight and seven tenths percent
(48.7%) to municipal and industrial (M&I) uses (M&I Allocation) or $3,307,412. The Irrigation
allocation bears no interest and repayment commences in fiscal year end 2017. Interest during
construction in the amount of $325,477 was added to the M&I Allocation. During construction
COMB made advances in the amount of $1,496,148 that were applied against the M&I Allocation
amounts. Accounting for advances made by COMB during construction, the balance due under the
Mé&I Allocation contract was $2,136,741.

COMB will assess the Member Units annually amounts equal to the obligation due Reclamation.
The annual payment requirements at June 30, 2011 to retire the contract as of June 30, 2052,
including interest payments at 5.856%, are presented in the following table. This table does not
include adjustments that will be made to the Bradbury Dam repayment contract due to additional
incurred costs or for payments that will be required under the Lauro Dam repayment contract.

Mé&I Allocation Irrigation
Principal Interest Allocation Total

2012 $ 66,328 $ 98,542 § - % 164,870
2013 70,212 94,658 - 164,870
2014 74,323 90,547 - 164,870
2015 78,676 86,194 - 164,870
2016 78,676 86,194 - 164,870
2017-2021 495,539 328,811 483,887 1,308,237
2022-2026 658,651 165,699 483,887 1,308,237
2027-2031 155,749 9,121 483,887 648,757
2032-2036 - - 483,887 483,887
2037-2041 - - 483,888 483,888
2042-2046 - - 483,887 483,887
2047-2051 - - 483,888 483,888
2052 - - 96,777 96,777

$ 1,682,760 $ 955,160 $ 3,483,989 § 6,121,909

-20 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5 -

SOD Act Assessments Receivable and Contract Payable (Continued)

The interest expense for the Bradbury Dam SOD Act contract payable was $102,212 and $105,678
for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The total cost of the Bradbury Dam SOD Act project is to be reevaluated and the repayment
agreement amended as necessary by Reclamation and COMB when all phases of the work are
completed. Total project costs as of June 30, 2011 were $48,321,547, $3,045,539 higher than the
total cost authorized under the repayment contract. It is management’s opinion that COMB will be
responsible for reimbursing Reclamation 15% of the total construction costs in excess of the costs
per the original repayment contract. As of June 30, 2011, an additional liability of $456,831 was
recorded for construction costs incurred in excess of the original repayment agreement. This is an
estimate based on management’s best judgment which may be adjusted as more current information
becomes available.

Reclamation can also reevaluate the ability of COMB’s Member Units to repay the Irrigation
Allocation every five years, commencing in fiscal year end 2008. No adjustment has been made to
the Irrigation Allocation balance to reflect a discount due to the non-interest bearing feature of the
contract.

Lauro Dam

On March 21, 2007, COMB executed a repayment contract with U.S. Bureau of Reclamation in the
Department of Interior of the United States (Reclamation). Under the terms of the agreement and in
accordance with the United States Safety of Dams (SOD) Act, COMB will reimburse Reclamation
for fifteen percent (15%) of the total amount of SOD Act funds expended by Reclamation to
preserve the structural integrity of Lauro Dam and reservoir; total costs not to exceed $17,314,125.
The primary contract for construction of the modification project was awarded by Reclamation in
September 2005 and the work was deemed substantially complete in February 2007.

COMB entered into a repayment contract with the Reclamation when the project was deemed to be
substantially complete. The repayment contract, as executed, calls for a repayment of 15% of a total
cost of $5,974,934 or approximately $896,240 plus interest, as appropriate, over a 50-year period.
The repayment obligation has been allocated fifty and seventy two one hundredths percent
(50.72%) to irrigation uses (Irrigation Allocation) or $454,573, and forty nine and twenty eight
hundredths percent (49.28%) to municipal and industrial (M&I) uses (M&I Allocation) or
$441,667. The Irrigation allocation bears no interest and repayment commences October 2017. The
M&I allocation balance due during the construction period accrued interest in the amount of
$15,798.

COMB will asses the South Coast Member Units annually amounts equal to the obligation due
January 4, 2057, including interest payments at 4.886%, are presented in the following table. This
table does not include adjustments that will be made to the Lauro Dam repayment contract due to
additional incurred costs or for payments that will be required under the Lauro Dam repayment
contract.

221 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5 -

SOD Act Assessments Receivable and Contract Pavable (Continued)

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041
2042-2046
2047-2048
2049-2056
2057

M&I Allocation Irrigation
Principal Interest Allocation Total

12,089 $ 19,999 - 8 32,088
12,640 19,448 - 32,088
13,216 18,872 - 32,088
13,818 18,270 - 32,088
14,447 17,641 - 32,088
82,731 77,709 54,115 214,555
103,374 57,066 54,115 214,555
129,168 31,272 54,115 214,555
57,477 3,895 54,115 115,486
- - 54,115 54,115
- - 54,115 54,115
- - 54,115 54,115
- - 54,115 54,115
- - 21,653 21,653
438,959 § 264,172 454,573 $ 1,192,597

The interest expense for the Laura Dam SOD Act contract payable was $20,526 and $13,789 for the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The total costs of the Lauro Dam SOD Act project is to be reevaluated and repayment agreement
amended as necessary by Reclamation and COMB when all phases of work are completed. The
total project costs as of June 30, 2011 were $6,715,436, $740,502 higher than the total costs
authorized by the repayment contract. It is management’s opinion that COMB will be responsible
for reimbursing Reclamation 15% of the total construction cost incurred in excess of the original
repayment contract. As of June 30, 2011, an additional liability of $111,076 is recorded for
construction costs incurred in excess of the original repayment agreement.

222 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5 -

Note 6 -

SOD Act Assessments Receivable and Contract Payable (Continued)

Management deems the assessments receivable related to the Bradbury and Lauro Dams SOD Act
projects to be fully collectable. The total SOD Act liability at June 30, 2011 is composed of the
following:

Bradbury Dam repayment contract:

M&I principal $ 1,682,761
Irrigation principal 3,483,989
Total Bradbury Dam repayment contract obligation
excluding interest 5,166,750
Bradbury Dam liability for 15% of additional costs
incurred over repayment contract 456,831
Total Bradbury Dam SOD Act liability 5,623,581
Lauro Dam repayment contract:
M&I principal $ 438,959
Irrigation principal 454,573
Total Lauro Dam repayment contract obligation excluding
interest 893,532
Lauro Dam liability for 15% of additional costs incurred
over repayment confract 111,076
Total Lauro SOD Act liability 1,004,607
Total SOD Act Liability 6,628,188
Less current portion (78,418)
Long-term portion of SOD Act liability $ 6,542,539

Long-Term Debt

Changes in long term debt amounts for years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Beginning Principal Ending
Balance 2011 Additions Payments Balance 2011
SOD Act Liabilities $§ 6,670,373 § 32,035* § (74,220) $ 6,628,188
$ 6,670,379 $ 32,035 $ (74,220) § 6,628,188
Beginning Principal Ending
Balance 2010 Additions Payments Balance 2010
SOD Act Liabilities $ 6,739,778 $ 8,086 $ (77,491) $ 6,670,373
$ 6,739,778 $ 8,086 § (77,491) § 6,670,373

* During the year ended June 30, 2011 the Bureau of Reclamation adjusted COMB’s long term
debt related to the Lauro Dam by this amount.

223 -

r




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7 - Capital Assets

The following is a summary of capital assets which include property, plant and equipment at June
30,2011 and 2010.

Beginning Ending
Balance 2011 Additions  Deletions Transfers Balance 2011
Vehicles $ 338974 $ 5225 $ - $ 68763 $ 412,962
Office furniture and equipment 237,870 26,338 - 82,041 346,249
Field equipment 377,491 26,916 (6,500) 49,706 447,613
Mobile offices used for facilities 97,803 - - - 97,803
Resurfacing 22,350 - - - 22,350
Total capital assets 1,074,488 58,479 (6,500) 200,510 1,326,977
Less: accumulated depreciation
and amortization (852,476) (89,659) 6,000 (156,300) (1,092,435)
Net capital assets $ 222,012 $ (31,180) $ (500) $§ 44210 § 234,542
Beginning Ending
Balance 2010 Additions  Deletions Transfers Balance 2010
Vehicles $ 338974 % - $ -5 - § 338974
Office furniture and equipment 219,802 18,068 - - 237,870
Field equipment 366,549 10,942 - - 377,491
Mobile offices used for facilities 97,803 - - - 97,803
Resurfacing 22,350 - - - 22,350
Total capital assets 1,045,478 29,010 - - 1,074,488
Less: accumulated depreciation
and amortization (768,209) (84,267) - - (852,476)
Net capital assets $ 277269 § (55257) § - % - $ 222012

-24 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8§ -

Note 9 -

Joint Powers Insurance Authority

COMB participates in the property and liability program organized by the Association of California
Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA). Employees working for COMB
receive the benefits of this plan through the employee services agreement. ACWA/JPIA is a Joint
Powers Authority created to provide a self-insurance program to water agencies in the State of
California. The ACWA/JPIA is not a component unit of COMB for financial reporting purposes, as
explained below.

ACWA/JPIA provides liability, property and workers’ compensation insurance for approximately
300 water agencies for losses in excess of the member agencies specified self-insurance retention
levels. Individual claims (and aggregate public liability and property claims) in excess of specified
levels are covered by excess insurance policies purchased from commercial carriers. ACWA/JPIA
is governed by a board comprised of members from participating agencies. The board controls the
operations of ACWA/JPIA, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets,
independent of any influence by the members beyond the representation on the board. Each member
shares surpluses and deficiencies proportionately to its participation in ACWA/JPIA.

Additional information and complete financial statements for the ACWA/JPIA are available for

public inspection at 5620 Birdcage Street, Suite 200, Citrus Heights, CA, between the hours of 8
a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday through Friday.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

COMB contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System Miscellaneous 2% at 55
Risk Pool, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
California Public Employees Retirement System (“CalPERS”). A menu of benefit provisions, as
well as other requirements, is established by State statutes within California Public Employee
Retirement Law. COMB selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with
CalPERS and adopts those benefits through the Board of Directors’ (the “Board”) authorization.

CalPERS issue a separate comprehensive annual financial report for the Miscellaneous 2% at 55
Risk Pool. Copies of the annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive
Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Funding Policy

Active plan members in the COMB defined benefit plan (the “Plan”) are required to contribute 7%
of their annual covered salary. COMB pays this amount to CalPERS on behalf of their employees.
The required employer contribution rates for 2011 and 2010 were 10.671% and 10.361%,
respectively. The contribution requirements of the Plan’s members are established by State statute,
and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS.

225 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 -

Note 10 -

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost

For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, COMB’s annual pension cost (APC) of $90,910 and
$102,038 respectively, was equal to COMB’s required and actual contributions. The required
contribution for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation using the entry-age-normal-actuarial-cost method, with the contributions determined as
percentage of pay. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 3.25% to 14.45% a year compounded
annually, depending on age, service, and type of employment, attributable to inflation, and (c) merit
increases. Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component of 3.0%. The actuarial value of the
Plan’s assets was determined using a technique that smoothes the effect of short-term volatility in
the market value of investments over a fifteen-year period. CalPERS unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis over 20
years.

Three-year trend information for CalPERS:

Annual Pension Percentage
Fiscal Year Ended Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
2009 $ 148,497 100% -
2010 102,038 100% -
2011 140,647 100% -

Deferred Compensation Plan

COMB offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with the Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to employees at their option, permits participants to
defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
participants until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of
compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all
income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are maintained (until paid or made
available to the participant or beneficiary) in a trust account administered by State Street Bank and
Trust. Participants have sole rights under the plan in an amount equal to the fair market value of the
deferred for each participant. Contributions made by COMB for the employees to the plan for the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were and $90,910 and $104,778, respectively.

226 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11 -

Post-retirement Health Care Benefits

COMB offers post-retirement health insurance benefits to retired employees. Retired employees are
eligible to receive benefits, equal to medical, dental and vision insurance, if the employee has
reached age 50 and has twelve years of covered service.

Funding Policy

COMB’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual
required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The annual required contribution represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The current ARC rate is
10% of the annual covered payroll. COMB has elected to make contributions equal to the pay-as-
you-go amount.

Annual OPEB Cost

For 2011, the COMB’s annual OPEB cost (expense) of $121,050 for the plan was equal to the
ARC. COMB’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for 2011 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2010 $ 121,050 21% $ 96,113
6/30/2011 125,856 26% 189,568
* * * *

* 2010 was the first year that COMB implemented GASB 45; therefore, only two years of data is
available for presentation.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 1,164,773
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets $ -
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 1,164,773
Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assets/AAL) 0%
Covered Payroll (Active Plan Members) $ 1,160,852
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 100%

-27 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11 -

Post-retirement Health Care Benefits (Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information that shows whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan
as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques
that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods:

Valuation Date June 30, 2009
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll
Remaining Amortization Period 30 Years as of the valuation date
Asset Valuation Method Not applicable
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 5.00%

Inflation 3.00%

Payroll Growth 3.00%

The current annual required contribution is 10% of the annual covered payroll.

-28 -




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12 -

Note 13 -

Note 14 -

Related Party Transactions

Three of the Member Units of COMB are the same as the Member Units of another joint powers
agency, the Cachuma Conservation and Release Board (CCRB), Santa Ynez Water Conservation
District Improvement District No. 1 (ID#1) and Carpinteria Valley Water District are not members
of CCRB.

COMB had an Employee Services Agreement with CCRB and ID#1 which had expired but was
utilized in compliance with the terms of the agreement through December 31, 2010. The costs of
materials and supplies, and salaries and related benefits for services performed by COMB under the
Employee Services Agreement were recorded by CCRB as operating expenses. CCRB assesses its
Member Units to fund 89.69% of this obligation and receives the 10.31% balance from ID#1, in
accordance with provisions of the Employee Services Agreement. These items are not shown as
operating expenses in the financial statements. As of June 30,2011 and 2010, CCRB owed COMB
$47,072 and $66,825, respectively for these services.

Transfer from Related Entity

In September 2010, the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board approved a budget adjustment
effective January 2011 to transfer from CCRB the implementation of the Santa Ynez River
Fisheries Program as required by the 2000 Biological Opinion. Revenue, capital assets, liabilities
and accrued vacation related to the Fishery Projects were transferred to Cachuma Operation and
Maintenance Board. As a result of the transfer, COMB realized a net asset transfer gain of
approximately $16,416 which was recognized on the statement of revenue, expenses and changes in
net assets.

Commitments and Contingencies

1993 Cachuma Project Authority Bonds

In 1996 COMB merged with the Cachuma Project Authority (CPA) and as a result of this merger
COMB became the agency responsible for the oversight and payment of the 1993 CPA bonds.
These bonds have not been recorded on the books of COMB since three of the Member Units are
obligated under Joint Participation Agreements to make the principal and interest payments on
behalf of COMB.

On August 19, 2004, COMB refinanced the 1993 CPA bonds with the 2004 Cachuma Operation
and Maintenance Board Bonds (“Bonds”) for $4,480,000 at varying interest rates from 3.000% to
4.625% on behalf of three Member Units. Each of the three Member Unit participants has entered
into one or more joint participation agreements with COMB pursuant to which the Member Unit is
obligated to make certain payments to COMB with respect to certain additions, betterments,
extensions or improvements to such Member Unit’s water system. Such payments, when received
by or on behalf of COMB, will constitute revenues pledged to secure the payment of the principal
of and interest on the Bonds.

In the ordinary course of business, various legal proceedings may be pending, however, in the

opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a significant impact
on the financial position of the entity.

EX

-29.




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15 - Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year numbers to conform with current year
presentation.

Note 16 - Subseguent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 8, 2011, the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued.

=30 -




SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE,
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER MAINTENANCE EXPENSE
For the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Operation and Maintenance Division
Operation and Maintenance Expense
Salaries and benefits $ 796,699 $ 670,497
Contract labor 66,021 38,498
Equipment 2,630 3,33
Equipment rental 4,581 2,783
Materials and supplies 32,824 17,198
Vehicle maintenance 31,054 24,035
Other expenses 45,246 37,742
Total operation and maintenance expense $ 979,055 $ 794,084
General and Administrative Expense
Administration salaries $ 218,156 $ 228,227
Accrued wages and vacation - 11,307
Directors fees and expense 12,058 12,771
Legal and audit 97,993 111,198
Liability insurance 43,570 34,962
Health insurance and workers compensation 73,056 45,566
Retirement plan contributions 166,694 160,376
Payroll tax expense 19,717 18,097
Office supplies and expense 7,187 6,004
Administrative travel and conferences 4,827 2,960
Membership dues 6,640 5,713
Employee training 2,644 1,769
Public information 797 482
Other expenses 55,014 44,058
Total general and administrative expense 3 708,353 $ 683,490
Other Maintenance Expense
Flow meter upgrades and SCADA system $ 10,398 $ 10,947
COMB building / grounds repair 44,059 45,917
SCC improvement plan and design 228,436 380,140
SCC Valves and control station rehabilitation 7,108 -
SCC structure rehabilitation 22,285 -
SCC Life Expectancy 1,593
GIS and mapping 12,572 29,700
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan - 7,800
Sanitary Survey 49,396 -
SCC MURRP Project 67,868 -
Total other maintenance expense $ 442,122 $ 476,097
See accompanying notes
e ¢ 13




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE,
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER MAINTENANCE EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Fisheries Division 2011 2010
Operation and Maintenance Expense
Salaries and benefits 209,069
Contract labor 12,535
Vehicles and equipment 11,738
Materials and supplies 1,872
Other expenses 1,366
Total operation and maintenance expense 3 236,580 $

General and Administrative Expense

Administration salaries 27,120
Health insurance and workers compensation 8,670
Retirement plan contributions 4,659
Payroll tax expense 2,450
Office supplies and expense 4,791
Administrative travel and conferences 2,145
Membership dues 90
Other expenses 22,901
Total general and administrative expense $ 72,826 $

Fishery related projects

FMP implementation 37,808
GIS and mapping 1,395
Grants technical support 3,860
SYR hyrdrology technical support 13,141
USGS stream gauge program 55,227
Tri county fish team funding 2,500
Oak tree restoration program 66,508
Total fishery related projects $ 180,439 $

See accompanying notes
-32-




